
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive 
November 5, 2014 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 6:00 PM

1 CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
Proclamation in Recognition of Veteran's Day

3. PRESENTATIONS
a. Island County Opportunity Council - Director Lisa Clark

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive 
November 5, 2014 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 6:00 PM

1 CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
Proclamation in Recognition of Veteran's Day

3. PRESENTATIONS
a. Island County Opportunity Council - Director Lisa Clark

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Special Meeting and Regular City Council Meeting held on October 21, 

2014, and Workshop held on October 22, 2014, and Parliamentary Workshop held on
October 30, 2014.

b. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers.
c. Authorize the Mayor to sign the 2016 Water Quality Financial Assitance loan application.
d. Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment #1 to Forest City Agreement for Animal Control

Services.
e. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Washington State Department of 

Corrections Contract.
f. Ordinance 1706:  Ordinance Repealing OHMC 2.04 entitled 'Salary of Mayor and

Councilmen'

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Special Meeting and Regular City Council Meeting held on October 21, 

2014, and Workshop held on October 22, 2014, and Parliamentary Workshop held on 
October 30, 2014.

b. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers.
c. Authorize the Mayor to sign the 2016 Water Quality Financial Assitance loan application.
d. Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment #1 to Forest City Agreement for Animal Control 

Services.
e. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Washington State Department of 

Corrections Contract.
f. Ordinance 1706:  Ordinance Repealing OHMC 2.04 entitled 'Salary of Mayor and 

Councilmen'

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

1



8. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 14-38: Supporting NASWI during EIS Scoping Period

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS
a. Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
b. Ordinance 1703: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments
c. Ordinance 1702:  2015 Property Tax Levy

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Discussion on Waste Water Treatment Plant Bonding options.

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Discussion and action on the 2015-16 allocation of utility tax to the Art Acquisition and

Maintenance Fund.

12. ADJOURNMENT

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting
begins. During the meetings Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of
concern or interest that are not on the agenda.

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet 
located in the Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure

8. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 14-38: Supporting NASWI during EIS Scoping Period

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS
a. Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
b. Ordinance 1703: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments
c. Ordinance 1702:  2015 Property Tax Levy

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Discussion on Waste Water Treatment Plant Bonding options.

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Discussion and action on the 2015-16 allocation of utility tax to the Art Acquisition and 

Maintenance Fund.

12. ADJOURNMENT

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting 
begins. During the meetings Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of 
concern or interest that are not on the agenda.

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet 
located in the Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure located in the Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure
your comments are recorded properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit your comments to three minutes in order that other citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

Thank you for participating in your City Government!

located in the Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure 
your comments are recorded properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit your comments to three minutes in order that other citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

Thank you for participating in your City Government!

2



3



Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2014 - Page 1 

Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Bob Severns  Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 

Tallie Boyer, Accountant  
Steve Powers, Development Serv. Director 
City Engineer Joe Stowell 
John Piccone, Project Engineer 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

WA State Auditors present 

Councilmembers Severns and Munns were absent. 

AGENDA 

1. Washington State Auditor’s Exit Conference

Doug Merriman, Finance Director, commenced the Auditor’s Exit Conference discussion and asked the Audi-
tors to present their report.   

The Washington State Auditors in attendance presented the results of the audit which will be present in the 
2013 report.  No recommendations or findings were made. 

Items reviewed include the following: Contracts, Police Department controls, North Reservoir Project, forfeiture 
review, risk assessment, building permits and receipting, software security review, passwords and access for 
management, third party cash receipting.  One of the recommendations from the 2012 Audit suggested tighten-
ing the third party cash system, specifically the Active website for the Marathon.  

The city has received a clean audit report.  The report will include a few exit item recommendations; however 
the report will not contain negative concerns or findings. 
Mayor Dudley asked how the auditor team shared reviewing the financial statements.  

4



Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2014 - Page 2 
 
 

 
The auditors explained that their report only includes exit item recommendations which do not have a negative 
impact on their report for the City.   
 
The three exit recommendations for 2013 include the following issues: 

- Scope of work and payments in contracts need to be strictly followed  
- City-wide password policies 
- Third-party cash receipting and safeguard of public funds. 
 

Larry Cort, the City Administrator explained that the City has already implemented a password policy sufficient 
to the State’s requirements.  
 
Councilmembers asked follow-up questions. 
 
The State auditors concluded the meeting by informing the Council that they will issue a letter to the city within 
a few weeks.  The next audit for 2015 is scheduled to review accountability and financial statements.  The au-
ditor explained their costs have been reduced accountability items from last year’s billing.  The auditors will 
continue to reduce accountability fees to the best of their ability. 
 
Councilmember Hizon thanked the auditors for the efforts in keeping costs down. 
 
Councilmember Almberg and Mayor Pro Tem commented on comparisons of audit costs from this audit to pre-
vious years.  
 
Mayor Dudley thanked the auditors for the exit conference presentation and the meeting concluded at 3:31 
p.m. 

 

2. Discussion regarding Bonding Options for the Waste Water Treatment Plant  
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided a power point presentation regarding the projected costs of the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant from 2013-2017 including Revenue Bond Issue Status and SRF Loan Status. 
 
Council members asked questions regarding the proposed funding issues.   
Mr. Merriman presented graphs on power point showing sources of funding including cash and bonds for the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 4:12 p.m. 
 
 
            Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

5



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Cathy Rosen, Director of Finance 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Clerk Anna Thompson 

City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Mike Buxton, Deputy Chief 
Mike McIntyre, Senior Serv. Administrator 

Councilmembers Munns and Severns were absent. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 

Councilmember Jim Campbell gave the invocation, and Mayor Scott Dudley lead the pledge of 
allegiance.  

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 

Councilmember Tara Hizon read the Proclamation for National Magic Week, and presented the 
Proclamation to Magician J.R. Russell. 

PRESENTATION 

Cheryn Weiser, Executive Director of Senior Services of Island County, provided a presentation 
educating the Council about their services provided to the County. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, Councilmem- 
 ber Campbell seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously. 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 6:15 p.m. 

6



Citizen Comments 

Vivian Rodgers Decker 
Skip Pohtilla 

Mayor Dudley closed the comment period at 6:23 p.m. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held on October 7, 2014
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Nos.

- Voucher Numbers 159973 through 160140 in the amount of $642,582.18. 
Approval of Payroll Check Numbers

- Direct Deposit Numbers 32499 through 32631. 
- EFT Numbers 653through 655. 
- Payroll Check Numbers 97547 through 97559. 

c. Orswell Events Contract for Marathon Planning and Production.

Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to approve Consent Agenda items as presented.  
        Motion seconded by Councilmember Servatius, carried unanimously. 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

City Administrator 

City Administrator Dr. Cort reminded the Council of the Workshop scheduled for October 22 at 
3:00 p.m., and the Parliamentary Procedure Workshop scheduled set for October 30, 2014. 

Dr. Cort announced “Mayor of the Day” contest in City Hall.  The individual who submits the 
winning idea will receive $50.00. 

Mayor 

Mayor Scott Dudley announced that the prime suspect in a local murder was arrested today. 
The Mayor encouraged citizens to get involved with neighborhood watch programs for our  
safety. 

Mayor Dudley informed the citizens that the Washington State Auditors provided a clean finan-
cial report for the City of Oak Harbor and thanked the efforts of the Finance Department, Fi-
nance Director Doug Merriman, and Accountant Tallie Boyer. 

Councilmembers 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao thanked City Administrator Dr. Cort for keeping the Council up to date 
on the murder investigation.  

Councilmember Campbell announced that he is glad to be back in Oak Harbor from his travels. 
Mr. Campbell stated that he was pleased with the way things have been going at Island Transit. 

7



Mr. Campbell’s opinion is that the Island County Board of Directors has been misled by their 
staff, he called for all of the current Board of Directors of Island Transit to resign and be re-
placed in order to allow a fresh set of eyes. 

Motion:  Councilmember Campbell made a motion to that Jim Campbell be taken off of the 
  Island Transit Board of Directors to be replaced by the Mayor, term to expire on      
  December 31, 2014.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Hizon.  Passed by majority 
  vote. 

 Motion opposed by Councilmember Servatius. 

Mayor Dudley encouraged the Council appoint an alternate to his position on the Board of Is-
land County Transit and suggested appointing Councilmember Servatius in part because of his 
financial background. 

Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to appoint Councilmember Servatius as the alternate 
  to the Island Transit Board in the Mayor’s absence to represent the City of Oak Harbor.  
  Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao.  Motion passed by majority vote.  

Mr. Servatius explained that he would like to wait on decision for an alternate member vote until 
Councilmembers Munns and Severns are present to weigh in on the decision-making.  

  Motion opposed by Councilmember Hizon, and Councilmember Servatius abstained. 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to move agenda Item 9.c to precede item number 
6.a of the Agenda.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Hizon, unanimously

  approved. 

9.c   Authorize the Mayor to sign a Local Agency Agreement with WSDOT accepting TAP
grant funding for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Improvements. 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report.  

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 6:59 p.m. 

Mike Miracle spoke in opposition to the item. 

Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to provide an additional 5 minutes for Mike Miracle’s 
  comment period.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Hizon, approved unanimously.  

Harold Johnson, Harbor Tower Village Resident 

Mayor Scott Dudley closed the public comment period at 7:09 p.m. 

Councilmember Servatius spoke against the proposed location of Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk 
project. 

Councilmember Campbell spoke in support of building a crosswalk on Whidbey Avenue but 
stressed that there is a need take more time to assess the best location for the crosswalk. 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao agreed with Councilmember Campbell and Servatius’ comments.  His 
primary concern is public safety for drivers and pedestrians on Whidbey Avenue.   

8



Mayor Pro Tem Paggao and Councilmember Almberg asked Traffic Engineer Ryan Peterson 
questions regarding the crosswalk report. Mr. Peterson explained that the crosswalk position is 
a proposal and before the location is finalized, it must be processed through a rigorous design 
phase of planning. 

Councilmember Hizon asked about responsibility of sidewalk repairs.  She spoke in support of 
erecting a crosswalk and wants to ensure a safe location.     

Authorize the Mayor to sign a Local Agency Agreement with WSDOT accepting TAP 
grant funding for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Improvements. 

Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to authorize the Mayor to sign a Local Agency 
  Agreement with WSDOT accepting TAP grant funding for the Whidbey Avenue  
  Pedestrian Improvements.  Motion Seconded by Councilmember Campbell, carried 
  unanimously. 

Mayor Dudley called a recess for 5 minutes at 7:43 p.m.  Mayor Dudley reconvened the meeting 
at 7:48 p.m. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution 14-34:  Increase Senior Center Annual Membership Dues 
Mike McIntyre Senior Services Administrator provided the staff report. 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:51 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:51 p.m. 

Councilmember Almberg asked what local support has ceased to the Center, and then asked 
whether the dues increase could be offset by increasing County Seniors’ membership dues.  Mr. 
McIntyre responded that offsetting fee increase from City to County Seniors was discussed and 
determined that the decrease in County Senior membership, due to the proposed offset of in-
creased fees, would outweigh any benefit. would decrease membership from County Seniors 
would dwindle  

Resolution 14-34:  Increase Senior Center Annual Membership Dues 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to Adopt Resolution No. 14-34.  Motion Seconded 
  by Councilmember Campbell, carried unanimously. 

Resolution 14-38:  Storm Drain Fund #404 Interfund Loan 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report. 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 8:03 p.m., no comments, closed at 8:03 p.m. 

Resolution 14-38:  Storm Drain Fund #404 Interfund Loan 

Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to Adopt Resolution No. 14-38.  Motion Seconded by 
  Councilmember Servatius, carried unanimously. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

9



NEW BUSINESS 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the WSDOT STP-R Grant Application for the Transportation Com-
prehensive Plan. 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 8:10 p.m., no comments, closed at 8:10 p.m. 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the WSDOT STP-R Grant Application for the Transportation 
Comprehensive Plan. 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Surface 
        Transportation Program-Regional Grant Application for the Transportation Compre- 

      hensive Plan.  Motion Seconded by Councilmember Campbell, carried unanimously. 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the WSDOT STP-R Grant Application for the Heller Road Resurfac-
ing from W. Whidbey Ave to NW Crosby Ave. 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 8:15 p.m., no comments, closed at 8:15 p.m. 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the WSDOT STP-R Grant Application for the Heller Road Re-
surfacing from W. Whidbey Ave to NW Crosby Ave. 

Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Surface 
Transportation Program-Regional Grant Application for asphalt overlay of NW Heller 
Street.  Motion Seconded by Councilmember Servatius, carried unanimously. 

Authorize the Mayor to Sign Amendment No. 1 with Gray & Osborne Engineering for services 
related to the water system improvement projects. 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 8:26 p.m., no comments, closed at 8:26 p.m. 

Authorize the Mayor to Sign Amendment No. 1 with Gray & Osborne Engineering for ser-
vices related to the water system improvement projects. 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 
  to the Consultant Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for Engineering services  
  related to replacing leaking steel water mains in the amount of $64,800.00 increasing 
  the total contract amount from $964,100.00 to $1,028,900.00.  Motion Seconded by  
  Councilmember Campbell, carried unanimously. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor Scott Dudley called a recess for Executive Session to discuss Labor Negotiations for 
fifteen (15) minutes at 8:31 p.m.  

Mayor Dudley extended the Executive for an additional five (5) minutes at 8:49 p.m. 

The City Council Meeting reconvened from executive session at 8:54 p.m.  The Mayor stated 

10



that no action was taken during executive session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Hizon moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously 
carried. 

The meeting adjourned at 9:55 p.m.  

  Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

11



Workshop Meeting Minutes – October 22, 2014 - Page 1 

Oak Harbor City Council 
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Deputy Chief Mike Buxton 

Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Accountant Tallie Boyer 
Police Admin. Assist. Meg Massey 
City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Project Engineer John Piccone 
Mike McIntyre, Senior Serv. Administrator 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Councilmembers Hizon, Severns, and Munns were absent. 

AGENDA 

Departmental Briefings 

1. Archaeology Presentation - Engineering/ERCI
City Engineer Joe Stowell introduced Kelly Bush, Archeologist with Equinox Research Consultants 
International (ERCI).  Kelly Bush presented the archaeology presentation. 

Ms. Bush explained state and federal requirements for archaeological research performed before 
work can begin on capital projects affecting sensitive historical areas.  

She then presented images of artifacts discovered in various archaeological sites in Oak Harbor. 

Kelly Bush urged the City to consider historic preservation as an economic development tool for the 
Oak Harbor community.  

12



Workshop Meeting Minutes – October 22, 2014 - Page 2 

Councilmembers had the opportunity to review actual some archaeological resources discovered in 
Oak Harbor uncovered by ERCI in an open-house setting.   Ms. Bush explained the different uses of 
the artifacts. 

Pending Agenda Items 

1. 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 2015-2020 CIP – Development  Services
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the report. 

Councilmembers discussed the projects they previously rated by priority for the 2015-2020 Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP). 

2. 2015-2016 Budget – Admin/Finance
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided a report on the upcoming 2015-2016 Budget 

Mr. Merriman discussed the budget goals in relation to the Council’s priority projects for the next 
2015-2020 CIP.  The two plans must complement each other in order to be successful. 

The Council scheduled a Budget Workshop on November 5, 2014 beginning at 2:00 p.m. 

3. 2015 Property Tax – Finance
Doug Merriman, Finance Director discussed the 2015 Property Tax 

The Finance Director explained that 2015 property taxes likewise must be in sync with the budget and 
addressed its importance. 

Emerging Issues 

1. WWTP-Excavated Soils Strategy
John Piccone, Project Engineer presented the issues on this presentation. 

Mr. Piccone continued the discussion regarding placement of soils excavated from the Waste Water 
Treatment Plant construction site.  Location options included Public Works and stockpile near Wind-
jammer Park, and lay down area on the south side of Pioneer.  Several issues with the third option 
involve archaeology permit constraints, and loss of public access and parking.  The benefit of laying 
the soil to the Westside includes: strategic haul route, less public and archaeological impact, con-
forms with Bayshore Preliminary design concept, and sufficient parking for construction vehicles. 

2. Countywide Planning Policies
Presented by Steve Powers Development Director 

13



Workshop Meeting Minutes – October 22, 2014 - Page 3 

Planning Policies are being discussed county-wide.  Mr. Powers communicated the need to schedule 
a joint Planning Commission and City Council meeting to discuss countywide planning policies.  Once 
cities within Island County have established policies to advance the County, those cities will enter into 
Interlocal Agreements in order implement them. 

3. 2015 Legislative Priorities
City Administrator Larry Cort discussed the 2015 Legislative Priorities. 

Dr. Cort asked that the Councilmembers address some of their legislative goals for the State of 
Washington for 2015.  Councilmembers discussed various issues having legislative concern. 

Dr. Cort announced these priorities will be before the Council on November 5, 2014. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 5:26 p.m. 

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

14



Oak Harbor City Council 
Parliamentary Workshop Minutes 

October 30, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley     City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao   Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   City Attorney Nikki Esparza   
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Cathy Rosen, Director of Finance 
Councilmember Tara Hizon    Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   City Clerk Anna Thompson 
Councilmember Beth Munns    Parks Manager Hank Nydam  
Councilmember Bob Severns    City Prosecutor Erin Lewis 
       Police Admin. Assistant Meg Massey 
       Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
        
Mike Wright, Park Board Chair 
       

Parliamentary Training with Ann Macfarlene of Jurassic Parliament 
 

Mayor Scott Dudley introduced Ann Macfarlene, co-founder of Jurassic Parliament, Certified 
Association Executive and Professional Registered Parliamentarian.  
 
Ann Macfarlene presented the lecture entitled, “Running Great Meetings Using Robert’s Rules.”   
Attendees engaged in interactive role-playing as members of a board with Ms. Macfarlene’s  
guidance.  Ms. Macfarlene pointed out differences in Robert’s Rules as compared to the Oak  
Harbor City Council’s Rules of Procedure, including the Standard Code of Parliamentary Proce- 
dure which has been adopted by Oak Harbor City Council. 
 
Ms. Macfarlene called a brief recess at 10:55 a.m., and resumed training at 11:10 a.m. 
 
The meeting broke for lunch from 12:00 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 
Parliamentary Training resumed after lunch at 1:00 p.m.  Ms. Macfarlene encouraged further  
participation for the attendees with additional role-playing using Robert’s Rules and the  
Standard Code Rules of Parliamentary Procedure.  
 
Ann Macfarlene discussed some confusing rules of procedure, including: motion to rescind,  
motion to withdraw, motion to reconsider, and the appeals process by members of the body.   
She also discussed a few major differences between Robert’s Rules of Order and the Standard  
Code of Parliamentarian Procedure. 
 
 
 
Parliamentary Workshop Meeting Minutes – October 30, 2014 - Page 1 
 15



The training adjourned at 3:25 p.m.  
 
                Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

16



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Approval of Payroll and 
Accounts Payable Vouchers.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.  The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Approval of Payroll and 
Accounts Payable Vouchers.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.  The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONSPREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:
Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and 
Check Numbers listed in the November 5, 2014 Regular Agenda.

DISCUSSION
Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:
- Voucher Numbers 160141 thorugh160284 in the amount of $255,878.30.
 Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:
- Direct Deposit Numbers 32632 through 32785
- EFT Numbers 656 through 660
- Payroll Check Numbers 97560 through 97609

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:
Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and 
Check Numbers listed in the November 5, 2014 Regular Agenda.

DISCUSSION
Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:
- Voucher Numbers 160141 thorugh160284 in the amount of $255,878.30.
 Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:
- Direct Deposit Numbers 32632 through 32785
- EFT Numbers 656 through 660
- Payroll Check Numbers 97560 through 97609

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

6.

17



MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listings No. 1
2. Voucher Listings No. 2

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listings No. 1
2. Voucher Listings No. 2

18



10/20/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 8:02:41AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160141 10/20/2014 0007632  BOLAND, RACHEL Ref000218599 UB Refund Cst #00157816  77.59

Total :  77.59

 160142 10/20/2014 0004266  CHURCH ON THE ROCK Ref000218600 UB Refund Cst #00165485  96.75

Total :  96.75

 160143 10/20/2014 0004906  CHURCHILL RENTAL Ref000218602 UB Refund Cst #00120189  113.90

Total :  113.90

 160144 10/20/2014 0000340  GIFFORD, KATHY Ref000218601 UB Refund Cst #00120126  117.87

Total :  117.87

 160145 10/20/2014 0001494  HOMES FOR RENT Ref000218604 UB Refund Cst #00123777  12.72

Total :  12.72

 160146 10/20/2014 0007635  JOHNSON, DAWN Ref000218607 UB Refund Cst #00147570  6.33

Total :  6.33

 160147 10/20/2014 0007633  PLATT, JOHN OR ZANE Ref000218605 UB Refund Cst #00126424  14.90

Total :  14.90

 160148 10/20/2014 0007634  TAYLOR, SCOTT OR MARNI Ref000218606 UB Refund Cst #00126788  172.74

Total :  172.74

 160149 10/20/2014 0007630  UNION BANK Ref000218596 UB Refund Cst #00155222  335.92

Total :  335.92

 160150 10/20/2014 0002521  WHIDBEY RESIDENTIAL Ref000218603 UB Refund Cst #00122889  99.40

Total :  99.40

 160151 10/20/2014 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000218597 UB Refund Cst #00156846  73.20

Total :  73.20

 160152 10/20/2014 0007631  WOOD, JONATHON KYL Ref000218598 UB Refund Cst #00157808  32.96

Total :  32.96

Bank total :  1,154.28 12 Vouchers for bank code : bank

1Page:

19



10/20/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 8:02:41AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 1,154.28Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 12

2Page:

20



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160153 10/27/2014 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 101514 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  252.00

Total :  252.00

 160154 10/29/2014 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20140105 ANNUAL LICENSE  1,788.00

Total :  1,788.00

 160155 10/29/2014 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 24511 KEYS  4.00

Total :  4.00

 160156 10/29/2014 0000034  AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION 083352-14105 MEMBERSHIP/POWERS  613.00

Total :  613.00

 160157 10/29/2014 0000712  AMERIGAS 3033369621 PROPANE  160.59

Total :  160.59

 160158 10/29/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 35444 SEP 2014/WEB HOSTING  15.95

 75.00OCT 2014/WEB HOSTING35511

 15.95OCT 2014/WEB HOSTING35544

Total :  106.90

 160159 10/29/2014 0007606  ANDREWS, KIM EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  43.48

Total :  43.48

 160160 10/29/2014 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 102014 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

Total :  300.00

 160161 10/29/2014 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 UNIFORM SERVICES  1,316.02

Total :  1,316.02

 160162 10/29/2014 0006865  ARMADA 102214 COLLECTION FEE/32-208000-01/11-076000-02  1,186.41

Total :  1,186.41

 160163 10/29/2014 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0645919-IN FUEL  17,393.19

Total :  17,393.19

 160164 10/29/2014 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 32432 REGISTRATION/DUDLEY/HIZON  90.00

 45.00REGISTRATION/MAZZOLI32661

1Page:

21



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  135.00 160164 10/29/2014 0000055 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON

 160165 10/29/2014 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1403514-IN TESTING  122.00

Total :  122.00

 160166 10/29/2014 0000082  BAYSHORE OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC 0647265-001 SCANNING/CDS  9.73

Total :  9.73

 160167 10/29/2014 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 153267 PAD KIT/ROTORS  644.05

 163.29CANISTER/BRACKET153268

Total :  807.34

 160168 10/29/2014 0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS 99615 NARC TESTS  98.21

Total :  98.21

 160169 10/29/2014 0005027  BURT'S SAW & MOWER 726752 HEDGE TRIMMERS  190.35

Total :  190.35

 160170 10/29/2014 0000143  CADA 1ST HALF 2014 1ST HALF 2014 DCTED  2,532.50

Total :  2,532.50

 160171 10/29/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 179885195211 SUPPLIES  325.69

Total :  325.69

 160172 10/29/2014 0006215  CAROLLO 0137641 PROF SVC/PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AND FAC 5,920.07

Total :  5,920.07

 160173 10/29/2014 0001235  CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES 24047100 FLAGS  801.20

-636.00CREDITCM1300787

Total :  165.20

 160174 10/29/2014 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  10.60

 29.68NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 96.89NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 11.55NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 10.00NATURAL GAS/TREATMENT PLANT18583000007

 123.62NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

2Page:

22



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160174 10/29/2014 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 68.16NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 188.04NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 76.03NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 15.35NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 227.41NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 26.99NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 37.73NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  964.45

 160175 10/29/2014 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 102114 PETTY CASH  251.60

Total :  251.60

 160176 10/29/2014 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 47915 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATE  334.52

Total :  334.52

 160177 10/29/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032028 XFINITY TV  13.75

 220.22INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  233.97

 160178 10/29/2014 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 988035 SAND  160.56

 89.13R/M PRODUCTS989306

Total :  249.69

 160179 10/29/2014 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 54281 OIL  60.80

Total :  60.80

 160180 10/29/2014 0007593  CORPORATE TRAVELER 0YSG2014FINVC4427 TRAVEL SERVICES  595.62

Total :  595.62

 160181 10/29/2014 0001860  CORT, LARRY TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  347.15

 88.50TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB2

Total :  435.65

 160182 10/29/2014 0000217  CUES, INC 419510 SMP00950  17,156.12

3Page:

23



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  17,156.12 160182 10/29/2014 0000217 0000217  CUES, INC

 160183 10/29/2014 0007654  DARLEY & COMPANY 17160216 DIFFUSER/GAUGES  1,230.19

Total :  1,230.19

 160184 10/29/2014 0001228  DAVENPORT HOTEL 26350 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/POWERS  811.68

Total :  811.68

 160185 10/29/2014 0000235  DAVIDO CONSULTING GROUP, INC 13934 PROF SVC/SCENIC HEIGHTS DRAINAGE PROJECT 1,123.00

Total :  1,123.00

 160186 10/29/2014 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-520549 EXTRA CLEANING  31.90

 54.58BELT CUP & GUARD1-522531

 95.66SOD CUTTER1-522562

 82.17PULLEY1-522590

 526.52BRACKETS1-522725

 37.08SENSOR1-522731

 296.83IDLER/BUSHING1-522751

 95.30SENSOR1-522752

Total :  1,220.04

 160187 10/29/2014 0000253  DIVERSINT 14100491 MONITORS  1,247.88

 530.53HARD DRIVE14100497

Total :  1,778.41

 160188 10/29/2014 0001582  EVERGREEN PACIFIC PUBLISHING 5209 2015 TIDE GUIDES  78.20

Total :  78.20

 160189 10/29/2014 0007648  EYE REMEMBER, INC 100714 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  12.50

Total :  12.50

 160190 10/29/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK18486 HI-VIS LIME  130.25

 8.75CONNECTORSWAOAK18493

Total :  139.00

 160191 10/29/2014 0006836  FINDLEY, JACKIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  52.00

Total :  52.00

4Page:

24



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160192 10/29/2014 0003413  FIRE SERVICE BOOKSTORE 300005403 EMERGENCY CARE & TRANSPORATION  1,134.86

Total :  1,134.86

 160193 10/29/2014 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 2923700 SOLTRON/BIOBOR/DIESEL/MARINE FORMULA  521.70

Total :  521.70

 160194 10/29/2014 0007645  FOREST CITY 101614 OVERPAYMENT REFUND  5,763.33

Total :  5,763.33

 160195 10/29/2014 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 103114 NOV 2014/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 160196 10/29/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 80.63CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 66.15CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 68.37CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 62.61CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 62.68CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 184.36CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 95.52CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 31.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  931.67

 160197 10/29/2014 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2014795 ANNUAL RENEWAL  105.98

Total :  105.98

 160198 10/29/2014 0000349  GRAINGER 9563222505 LINE STRAINERS  50.50

Total :  50.50

 160199 10/29/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13489.00-9 PROF SVC/NORTH RESERVOIR  3,015.19

 17,674.75PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS13518.00-17

Total :  20,689.94

 160200 10/29/2014 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 030173 OCT 2014/TOURIST PROMOTION  6,666.67

Total :  6,666.67

 160201 10/29/2014 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8297 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  1,050.00

5Page:

25



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,050.00 160201 10/29/2014 0004974 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS

 160202 10/29/2014 0005806  HAMLIN, BARNEY 1 TRAVEL ADVANCE  27.00

Total :  27.00

 160203 10/29/2014 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3764184 ADAPTERS/NIPPLES/COUPLINGS/BALL VALVES  461.98

 24.74FLANGESI3773011

Total :  486.72

 160204 10/29/2014 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS D063632 CPLGS  15.51

Total :  15.51

 160205 10/29/2014 0007652  HESTON HAULING 29751 TOWING SERVICES  193.48

Total :  193.48

 160206 10/29/2014 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 54964624 COMPUTER  977.21

Total :  977.21

 160207 10/29/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2020865 BRZ/UNION/PAD/RUBE/ADAPTER  405.94

 8.553/4 X 2 M2020866

 17.34FXF WHC2020897

-23.75LBF-15 WHC2083266

 25.86GRN RT/KNIFE/GROUT2566988

 23.75LBF-15 WHC2566998

 64.01WRENCH/PLIERS/FILTERS4023743

 43.93COV/BRZ/TWEL/BRUSH4023796

 28.24GLN INT SG4572135

 6.48RC/WP4573491

 10.471/4 2X4 BC4592204

 46.64TERMS/ADAPTERS5044136

 37.65SOIL5160121

 28.72EPOXY/SCREW/TANK EXCHANGE560440

 55.90BLEACH6573810

 25.08A/R CBLCUFFLG6573835

 75.17CONS6573837

 85.06BENCH7044047

 32.56LBBYDSTPNBLK7160047

 14.11WIREGUARD7566789

6Page:

26



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160207 10/29/2014 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 14.36STUDS7573355

 7.00COVER/HZ8011609

 22.92SPRAY PAINT8591182

 60.83MORTAR9022736

 6.40COVERS9022776

 72.08SWIVELS/LINKS9026608

-20.88NIPPLE/UNION92651

 12.45GUN/PL5309573177

 43.46CUP9582069

Total :  1,230.33

 160208 10/29/2014 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 101314 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67

Total :  166.67

 160209 10/29/2014 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 572734-1 FRESHENER/CLAMP/RINGS/SOCKET  534.76

Total :  534.76

 160210 10/29/2014 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 2ND QTR 2014 2ND QTR 2014 PROFIT/EXCISE TAX  981.79

Total :  981.79

 160211 10/29/2014 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 080714 JUL 2014/COLLECTION FEES  17,682.07

Total :  17,682.07

 160212 10/29/2014 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114508206427 VACCINES  80.00

Total :  80.00

 160213 10/29/2014 0000438  ISLAND PAINT & GLASS 28252 PAINT  430.33

Total :  430.33

 160214 10/29/2014 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 19941 ASPHALT  21.87

Total :  21.87

 160215 10/29/2014 0007647  JM RILEY COMPANY 101714 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  37.50

Total :  37.50

 160216 10/29/2014 0007649  JONES, ALAN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  42.00

7Page:

27



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  42.00 160216 10/29/2014 0007649 0007649  JONES, ALAN

 160217 10/29/2014 0006362  KBA, INC 3001892 PROF SVC/WINDJAMMER PARK STORMWATER OUTF 8,463.83

 1,229.04PROF SVC/NORTH RESERVOIR3001893

Total :  9,692.87

 160218 10/29/2014 0000480  KNOX COMPANY INV00679124 STROBE  629.37

Total :  629.37

 160219 10/29/2014 0000487  KROESEN'S INC 22659 SWEATER  59.45

Total :  59.45

 160220 10/29/2014 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5102742MB ASPHALT  718.27

Total :  718.27

 160221 10/29/2014 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 10 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.50

Total :  227.50

 160222 10/29/2014 0005814  LIBERTY MUTUAL 601049781 BOND/GREEN  100.00

Total :  100.00

 160223 10/29/2014 0004863  LIND ELECTRONICS, INC 297264 TOUGHBOOK  431.85

Total :  431.85

 160224 10/29/2014 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  99.00

 78.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 99.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 129.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  405.00

 160225 10/29/2014 0000524  LYNDEN ICE 113009585 ICE  145.80

 81.00ICE124002314

Total :  226.80

 160226 10/29/2014 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 055920 GROCERIES  193.28

 238.93GROCERIES175868

Total :  432.21

8Page:

28



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160227 10/29/2014 0000362  MARSH-MCBIRNEY - HACH COMPANY 9062767 STAND  99.76

 815.25PROBE9064601

Total :  915.01

 160228 10/29/2014 0000040  MATRIX 608295845 LONG DISTANCE  400.82

Total :  400.82

 160229 10/29/2014 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE 101514 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160230 10/29/2014 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  37.18

Total :  37.18

 160231 10/29/2014 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 101514 OCT 2014/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 160232 10/29/2014 0000593  MUELLER, DEBORAH EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  21.93

Total :  21.93

 160233 10/29/2014 0006974  NORTH AMERICAN RESUCE, LLC IN165766 TOURNIQUETS  258.21

Total :  258.21

 160234 10/29/2014 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 345531 REPAIR KIT  103.52

Total :  103.52

 160235 10/29/2014 0006486  NORTHWEST LININGS & GEOTEXTILE 0053680-IN WOVEN COATED POLYETHYLENE  1,478.25

Total :  1,478.25

 160236 10/29/2014 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE 4959 NOV 2014/ADVERTISING  760.00

Total :  760.00

 160237 10/29/2014 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 128606 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  900.00

Total :  900.00

 160238 10/29/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 245833 CABLE/COVER  13.43

 32.25BLADE/FASTENERS246365

 19.01CABLE TIES246485

 7.57FLAP246488

9Page:

29



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160238 10/29/2014 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 40.21SCREWS246491

 21.52CLAMPS246497

 18.47WELDED CULTIVATOR246518

 8.14SCREWS246641

 40.82ADAPTERS/SCREWS246648

 53.44RIVET TOOL/FASTENERS246654

 3.79CLEANER246657

 8.67STRAINER246665

 26.18OIL246736

 3.76WALL PLATE/CONN246854

 48.90MANURE FORK246859

 20.62RSTP/LUBE246872

 8.69REPAIR246923

 8.14SCREWS246984

Total :  383.61

 160239 10/29/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-218842 LAMP  2.82

 8.44FILTERS001-218860

 48.02FILTERS001-218876

 44.46BLADES001-218877

 9.07BELTS001-218931

 45.35BELTS001-218932

 13.45FILTERS001-218955

 7.89FILTERS001-218994

 11.75CLEANER001-219369

 50.46WIPERS001-219377

 118.43BATTERY001-219378

 14.59FUEL STABILIZER001-219379

 43.43CLAMP/SPARK PLUG WIRE001-219405

 6.20FILTERS001-219406

 44.32BELTS001-219989

 1.53PARTS001-219990

Total :  470.21

 160240 10/29/2014 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 103114 MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

10Page:

30



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  3,000.00 160240 10/29/2014 0006743 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE

 160241 10/29/2014 0007653  OAK HARBOR PRIMARY CARE, PLLC 101114 INMATE SERVICES  161.00

Total :  161.00

 160242 10/29/2014 0000089  OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 00073299 COUPLERS  130.84

Total :  130.84

 160243 10/29/2014 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0081767 TIRES  10.85

 71.61TIRES0081770

 101.99TIRES0081772

 51.00TIRES0081773

Total :  235.45

 160244 10/29/2014 0005848  PALMER, FLORA 1 TRAVEL ADVANCE  15.00

Total :  15.00

 160245 10/29/2014 0001349  PARTNER CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 6818 ADAPTER/TIP  121.45

Total :  121.45

 160246 10/29/2014 0007084  PENDLETON, JOHN 090714 DRIFTWOOD DAY HATS  81.46

Total :  81.46

 160247 10/29/2014 0000709  PERS 01070281 SEP 2014/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 160248 10/29/2014 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  81.00

Total :  81.00

 160249 10/29/2014 0000732  POWERS, RICHARD S. TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  32.03

Total :  32.03

 160250 10/29/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000136776 ELECTRICITY/1301 SE CATALINA DR  37.48

 1,073.76ELECTRICITY/DISPLT200000881421

 10.81ELECTRICITY/WINDMILL200000919684

 2,105.39ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 11.28ELECTRICITY/EBATH200001097589

 13.03ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

11Page:

31



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160250 10/29/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 188.41ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 80.17ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 146.28ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917

 21.13ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 77.20ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 26.91ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 162.16ELECTRICITY/CMFTST200002723381

 14.79ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 172.55ELECTRCITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 18.15ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE200004342099

 133.80ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.16ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 11.65ELECTRICITY/WKITCH200005461666

 30.76ELECTRICITY/NEIL PK & HOLLAND GARDENS200005643446

 5,435.02ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGON200005933094

 13.20ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 169.13ELECTRCITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

 172.18ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 20.37ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 34.55ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 90.24ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 20.04ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 79.04ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LGHTS200010530240

 11.46ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 212.75ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 142.39ELECTRICITY/CABI200010531354

 103.12ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 39.25ELECTRICITY/BALLPK200010699706

 1,003.68ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 15.08ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

12Page:

32



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160250 10/29/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 12.73ELECTRICITY/785 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,052.70ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 2,281.44ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 17.48ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 1,585.74ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 744.49ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 96.25ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 51.68ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 281.00ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & 80 NW200014366534

 919.23ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 101.81ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 59.17ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 277.99ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 1,203.87ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 103.12ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 69.50ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 164.09ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 12.77ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,375.22ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 51.32ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 44.06ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 12.78ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 498.17ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 12.95ELECTRICITY/KITEST200020308330

 32.66ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 18.51ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 53.72ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 31.09ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 232.35ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 113.72ELECTRICITY/2725 NE GOLDIE ST220000598098

 48.06ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

 13.26ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

 648.18ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 691.39ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

13Page:

33



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160250 10/29/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 390.28ELECTRICITY/SW BEEKSMA DR300000005003

 27.72ELECTRICITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

 61.53ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 274.68ELECTRICITY/INTSCTN OF MIDWAY & NE 8 AVE300000010458

 177.31ELECTRICITY/900 SE MIDWAY BLVD LITE300000010516

Total :  25,834.50

 160251 10/29/2014 0002806  RADIA 1335009-RADA INMATE SERVICES  91.20

Total :  91.20

 160252 10/29/2014 0000753  RADIOSHACK 010138 BATTERIES  32.56

Total :  32.56

 160253 10/29/2014 0006170  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 102114 LARGE SCALE REGISTRATION  86.00

Total :  86.00

 160254 10/29/2014 0006727  ROMAINE ELECTRIC 5-001877 SPRING  19.69

Total :  19.69

 160255 10/29/2014 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  115.00

Total :  115.00

 160256 10/29/2014 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9404297231 SHREDDING  105.90

 62.00SHREDDING9404297374

Total :  167.90

 160257 10/29/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 414020 SPORTSMIX  6.85

Total :  6.85

 160258 10/29/2014 0000876  SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 23196 3RD QTR 2014/BUILDING OPERATIONS  14,956.11

Total :  14,956.11

 160259 10/29/2014 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW593603 SUMMARY OF ORDS 1699/1697/1698/1701  53.58

 42.36CITY NOTICESWCW593709

 130.83CITY NOTICESWCW593712

Total :  226.77

14Page:

34



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160260 10/29/2014 0000851  SPRINT 182311697 LONG DISTANCE  5.74

Total :  5.74

 160261 10/29/2014 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 102114 LIFE/POCFF  258.13

Total :  258.13

 160262 10/29/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3244889744 CREDIT -10.14

 85.14BINDERS/PLANNERS3244889745

 55.68PENS/FILES3244889751

 691.11TONER3245473460

Total :  821.79

 160263 10/29/2014 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L105073 2014 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2013  37,150.65

Total :  37,150.65

 160264 10/29/2014 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00

Total :  132.00

 160265 10/29/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1033395 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1034155

Total :  114.14

 160266 10/29/2014 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA 101514 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160267 10/29/2014 0000996  THOMSON REUTERS WEST 830523329 PUBLICATIONS  807.64

Total :  807.64

 160268 10/29/2014 0000897  TMG SERVICES, INC 0037051 PENTA DRIVE  1,663.11

Total :  1,663.11

 160269 10/29/2014 0007651  TRANSPOGROUP 16699 PROF SVC/WIDBEY AVE PEDESTRIAN CROSSING 4,500.00

Total :  4,500.00

 160270 10/29/2014 0007280  TRI COUNTY RECYCLING, INC 12 RECYCLING  876.80

Total :  876.80

 160271 10/29/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304661 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  81.75

15Page:

35



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  81.75 160271 10/29/2014 0004903 0004903  US BANK

 160272 10/29/2014 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 465178 TIE-DOWNS  44.33

 140.58TIE DOWNS/PROBE465769

Total :  184.91

 160273 10/29/2014 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC 2242860073 FILTER  59.01

Total :  59.01

 160274 10/29/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9733422742 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,539.15

Total :  4,539.15

 160275 10/29/2014 0005899  WASHINGTON AUDIOLOGY SERVICES 44478 HEARING TESTS  18.00

Total :  18.00

 160276 10/29/2014 0006692  WASHINGTON FESTIVALS & EVENTS 091514 MEMBERSHIP INVESTMENT  100.00

Total :  100.00

 160277 10/29/2014 0001055  WATERWORX DIVE SERVICE 101514 OCT 2014/UNDERWATER SERVICES  411.15

Total :  411.15

 160278 10/29/2014 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 227797 GAUGE  29.88

Total :  29.88

 160279 10/29/2014 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 091514-40 PHYSICAL/HUBBARD  150.00

Total :  150.00

 160280 10/29/2014 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL WAC16036 INMATE SERVICES  215.05

 663.00INMATE SERVICESWAC16145

 1,123.70INMATE SERVICESWAC16569

 245.65INMATE SERVICESWAC16812

 3,038.75INMATE SERVICESWAC17139

 374.85INMATE SERVICESWAC17450

 2,611.20INMATE SERVICESWAC17824

Total :  8,272.20

 160281 10/29/2014 0006151  WHIDBEY MARKETPLACE & NEWS,LLC 2949 ADVERTISING  711.50

16Page:

36



10/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:38:10PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  711.50 160281 10/29/2014 0006151 0006151  WHIDBEY MARKETPLACE & NEWS,LLC

 160282 10/29/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 47201 MARINA MAPS  201.18

 162.58MOORAGE LEASE AGREEMENTS47251

 162.58MOORAGE LEASE AGREEMENTS47252

 323.58TIME CHITS47274

 61.94CHECKED YOUR VEHICLE CARDS47275

Total :  911.86

 160283 10/29/2014 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701793329 AUG 2014/COPIER RENTAL  4,348.49

Total :  4,348.49

 160284 10/29/2014 0001067  ZEP SALES & SERVICE 9001258508 CLEANER  443.26

Total :  443.26

Bank total :  254,724.02 132 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 254,724.02Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 132

17Page:

37



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
2016 Water Quality Financial 
Assitance loan application.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this bill is a request to the City Council to authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to sign a 
Department of Ecology State Revolving Fund loan application for the 2016 Water Quality Financial 
Assistance program.  This loan application represents the City’s effort to obtain low-interest financing for 
the construction of the new Waste Water Treatment Plant.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Washington State Department of Ecology’s Water Quality Program administers three main funding 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
2016 Water Quality Financial 
Assitance loan application.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this bill is a request to the City Council to authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to sign a 
Department of Ecology State Revolving Fund loan application for the 2016 Water Quality Financial 
Assistance program.  This loan application represents the City’s effort to obtain low-interest financing for 
the construction of the new Waste Water Treatment Plant.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Washington State Department of Ecology’s Water Quality Program administers three main funding The Washington State Department of Ecology’s Water Quality Program administers three main funding 
programs under an integrated annual funding cycle: 1) The Centennial Clean Water Program, 2) the Clean
Water Act Section 310, and 3) The Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund 
Program.  The Department of Ecology awards grants and loans on a competitive basis to eligible public 
entities for high priority water quality projects, including the planning for and constructive of Wastewater
facility projects.  Within certain limits, and based on key financial demographics of the City of Oak 
Harbor, this form of funding offers low interest rate financing that would be applicable to our WWTP 
project.

City staff members are currently compiling the voluminous financial and technical information required by
the funding application, which is accomplished online at Ecology’s EAGL website.  Accordingly, a copy
of the completed application is not available for this agenda packet.  Please note that the application may
require the online signature of the Finance Director, acting as the City’s application liaison with 
Department of Ecology.  Accordingly, the Finance Director would be signing as the Mayor’s designee.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
The fiscal impact of obtaining State Revolving Fund financing is significant.  The tentative offering rate for 
SRF loans for 2016 is suggested at 2.4%, a rate which is significantly less than the weighted average 
market rate for a revenue bond issue in today's rate environment.  In addition, the City may qualify, upon
meeting certain criteria, for hardship funding which may include a reduction in the interest offering rate, the 
offering of grants, forgivable principal loans, or subsidized loan terms.

The Washington State Department of Ecology’s Water Quality Program administers three main funding 
programs under an integrated annual funding cycle: 1) The Centennial Clean Water Program, 2) the Clean 
Water Act Section 310, and 3) The Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund 
Program.  The Department of Ecology awards grants and loans on a competitive basis to eligible public 
entities for high priority water quality projects, including the planning for and constructive of Wastewater 
facility projects.  Within certain limits, and based on key financial demographics of the City of Oak 
Harbor, this form of funding offers low interest rate financing that would be applicable to our WWTP 
project.

City staff members are currently compiling the voluminous financial and technical information required by 
the funding application, which is accomplished online at Ecology’s EAGL website.  Accordingly, a copy 
of the completed application is not available for this agenda packet.  Please note that the application may 
require the online signature of the Finance Director, acting as the City’s application liaison with 
Department of Ecology.  Accordingly, the Finance Director would be signing as the Mayor’s designee.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
The fiscal impact of obtaining State Revolving Fund financing is significant.  The tentative offering rate for 
SRF loans for 2016 is suggested at 2.4%, a rate which is significantly less than the weighted average 
market rate for a revenue bond issue in today's rate environment.  In addition, the City may qualify, upon 
meeting certain criteria, for hardship funding which may include a reduction in the interest offering rate, the 
offering of grants, forgivable principal loans, or subsidized loan terms.

    6.

38



The amount of funding available is subject to several factors including the availability of Federal funding 
for the state program, as well as the amount of City award determined by the Department of Ecology.  
Accordingly, the actual dollar quantification of the benefit of obtaining a SRF financing package can not 
be determined at this time.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
On September 16, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-29, which authorized the Mayor and 
City staff to begin the preparing of 'documents necessary for a grant application, loan application, revenue 
bond sale application, the necessary resolutions to adjust the wastewater rate and schedules as needed, 
and any other applications or documents required to obtain total funding for the project.'  Resolution 14
29 does not include an authorization for signing loan documents.  Accordingly, subsequent City Council
actions is required authorizing the signing of documents.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
SRF Funding, as an integral component of the funding package for the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
project, was discussed at the September 24, 2014 City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to sign the City’s Water Quality Financial Assistance 2016 State 
Revolving Fund loan application.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

The amount of funding available is subject to several factors including the availability of Federal funding 
for the state program, as well as the amount of City award determined by the Department of Ecology.  
Accordingly, the actual dollar quantification of the benefit of obtaining a SRF financing package can not 
be determined at this time.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
On September 16, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-29, which authorized the Mayor and 
City staff to begin the preparing of 'documents necessary for a grant application, loan application, revenue 
bond sale application, the necessary resolutions to adjust the wastewater rate and schedules as needed, 
and any other applications or documents required to obtain total funding for the project.'  Resolution 14-
29 does not include an authorization for signing loan documents.  Accordingly, subsequent City Council 
actions is required authorizing the signing of documents.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
SRF Funding, as an integral component of the funding package for the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
project, was discussed at the September 24, 2014 City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to sign the City’s Water Quality Financial Assistance 2016 State 
Revolving Fund loan application.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTSTANDING COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees.

ATTACHMENTS

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees.

ATTACHMENTS

39



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. d.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign 
Amendment #1 to Forest City 
Agreement for Animal Control 
Services.

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with Forest City for animal control 
services to update the compensation for the federal fiscal year (October 2014-September 2015).

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Oak Harbor Police Department currently provides all animal control services to the tenants of United 
States Naval Housing within the City of Oak Harbor. These properties are managed for the United States 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. d.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign 
Amendment #1 to Forest City 
Agreement for Animal Control 
Services.

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with Forest City for animal control 
services to update the compensation for the federal fiscal year (October 2014-September 2015).

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Oak Harbor Police Department currently provides all animal control services to the tenants of United 
States Naval Housing within the City of Oak Harbor. These properties are managed for the United States States Naval Housing within the City of Oak Harbor. These properties are managed for the United States 
Navy by Forest City (Cleveland, OH).

In September 2013 the City of Oak Harbor and Forest City entered into an agreement for the City of 
Oak Harbor to provide Animal Control Services. The agreement used a formula to assess actual costs on
quarterly basis with a “true up” on an annual basis. This was accomplished by determining the exact 
number of calls within the boundaries of Forest City (US Navy property); the percentage of those calls in
comparioson to all the animal service calls and applying a quantifiable cost to these calls based on the 
actual costs of the animal control services and expenses provided to the rest of the City.  

On October 1, 2014, I completed the 'true up' as stipulated in the agreement and determined that actual
numbers for 2014 were less than the projected numbers used for the original contract. As a result Section
4 (Compensation) of the agreement has been changed (Amendment #1) to reflect the actual numbers to 
be used for calulate the charges for fiscal year 2014-2015.  

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
FY 2013-2014 Income: $34,734.71

FY 2013-2014 Overage: $5,763.33 (Due to Forest City for FY 2013-2014)

Projected FY 2014-2015 Income:  $28,971.39

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

States Naval Housing within the City of Oak Harbor. These properties are managed for the United States 
Navy by Forest City (Cleveland, OH).

In September 2013 the City of Oak Harbor and Forest City entered into an agreement for the City of 
Oak Harbor to provide Animal Control Services. The agreement used a formula to assess actual costs on 
quarterly basis with a “true up” on an annual basis. This was accomplished by determining the exact 
number of calls within the boundaries of Forest City (US Navy property); the percentage of those calls in 
comparioson to all the animal service calls and applying a quantifiable cost to these calls based on the 
actual costs of the animal control services and expenses provided to the rest of the City.  

On October 1, 2014, I completed the 'true up' as stipulated in the agreement and determined that actual 
numbers for 2014 were less than the projected numbers used for the original contract. As a result Section 
4 (Compensation) of the agreement has been changed (Amendment #1) to reflect the actual numbers to 
be used for calulate the charges for fiscal year 2014-2015.  

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
FY 2013-2014 Income: $34,734.71

FY 2013-2014 Overage: $5,763.33 (Due to Forest City for FY 2013-2014)

Projected FY 2014-2015 Income:  $28,971.39

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

  6.

40



PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Forest City Agreement for Animal Control Services approved by City Council on September 17, 2013.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment #1 to the Agreement with Forest City to amend the annual cost
paid to the City for animal control services in Navy housing based on actual cost of services.   

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Forest City Agreement Formula Table
2. Forest City Agreement Amendment #1
3. Forest City Agreement September 2013

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Forest City Agreement for Animal Control Services approved by City Council on September 17, 2013.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment #1 to the Agreement with Forest City to amend the annual cost 
paid to the City for animal control services in Navy housing based on actual cost of services.   

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Forest City Agreement Formula Table
2. Forest City Agreement Amendment #1
3. Forest City Agreement September 2013

41



2013 Budget  FY 2013 Calls for Service FY 2013 Forest City Calls for Service

Animal Control Budget $183,397.00 786 86 10.94% $20,063.63

WAIF Budget $100,000.00 10.94% $10,940.00

Holding Facility Expense $30,000.00 10.94% $3,282.00

Annual Taxes $2,421.00 10.94% $264.86

Average Utility Bill $1,683.96 10.94% $184.23

TOTAL $34,734.71

2014 Budget  FY 2014 Calls for Service FY 2014 Forest City Calls for Service 

Animal Control Budget $198,914.00 1,231 107 8.69% $17,285.63

WAIF Budget $100,000.00 8.69% $8,690.00

Holding Facility Expense $30,000.00 8.69% $2,607.00

Annual Taxes $2,865.79 8.69% $249.04

Average Utility Bill $1,607.85 8.69% $139.72

TOTAL $28,971.39

Difference $5,763.33

True Up paid by: City of Oak Harbor $5,763.33

$7,242.85

 FY 2014 Forest City Animal Control (Annual Numbers - Proposed / Paid by Forrest City) 

 FY 2014 Forest City Animal Control (Actual Annual Numbers) 

Quarterly Amount Due (2014-2015 Agreement):

42



Forest City Agreement to provide Animal Control Services 

Amendment #1 

Section 4. Compensation (October 1, 2014 – September 30, 3015) 

All costs related to recovery, transport, housing, feeding, watering, daily care, veterinary care, release to owner 
and adoption services, euthanasia, and disposal of remains services for animals delivered to the City from within 
the area shown in Exhibit A on behalf of  Forest City shall remain the responsibility of Forest City. The projected 
rate of payment to the City for those services set forth in this agreement shall be: 

A. Contract amount will be 8.69% of the City’s cost of providing animal control services and an animal 
holding facility as described in Exhibit B. The 8.69% is determined by the number of calls responded to 
by the City’s animal control officer (ACO) to Forest City housing as a percentage of the total calls 
responded to by the ACO.  The Contract amount for the term starting October 1, 2014 and ending on 
September 30, 2015 is $28,971.39. 

B. This percentage shall be adjusted annually based on the previous year’s calls. For the initial term of this 

agreement, the percentage will determined based on the calls between January 1, 2013 and August 7, 

2013 as detailed in Exhibit C. 

C. There will be a true-up, or reconciliation, of the amount owed for the prior year in October of each year 

based on the actual percentage of calls for service for that year. If the actual percentage of calls to 

Forest City housing is lower than the percentage established in the contract for that year, then the City 

will pay Forest City the difference. If the actual percentage is higher, then Forest City will pay the City 

the difference. The true-up or reconciliation shall be adjusted in the next quarterly billing. 

D.  The overall cost to the City of providing animal control and holding services will be reviewed bi-annually 

in conjunction with the City’s biennial budget process. The City shall provide notice to Forest City any 

changes in the overall cost within one month following adoption of the biennial budget. If the overall 

cost changes during this review, the amount owed by Forest City will be applied as a percentage of the 

revised overall cost. 

E. Billing/Payment 

Payments will be made quarterly. The City shall provide a quarterly billing to Forest City, and a report of 

all services provided under this agreement, including all calls for service (numbered events), by hour and 

type, to which the City responded and upon which the billing is based.   

Forest City shall pay the City within thirty (30) days after the receipt of the City’s invoice. 

43



44



45



46



47



48



17th September

49



50



51



52

cwicke
Rectangle

cwicke
Sticky Note
Not part of the Portfolio



53



54

cwicke
Rectangle

cwicke
Sticky Note
Not part of the Portfolio

cwicke
Polygon

cwicke
Sticky Note
Not part of the portfolio



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. e.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Amendment to the Washington 
State Department of Corrections 
Contract.

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is seeking approval of the Agreement Amendment #2 for the Washington
State Department of Corrections Contract (DOC) Interagency Agreement (#K9413) dated: January 1, 
2015 through December 31, 2017. 

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On October 20, 2014 the Washington State Department of Corrections sent an amendment to us for our 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. e.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Amendment to the Washington 
State Department of Corrections 
Contract.

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is seeking approval of the Agreement Amendment #2 for the Washington 
State Department of Corrections Contract (DOC) Interagency Agreement (#K9413) dated: January 1, 
2015 through December 31, 2017. 

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On October 20, 2014 the Washington State Department of Corrections sent an amendment to us for our On October 20, 2014 the Washington State Department of Corrections sent an amendment to us for our 
existing Interagency Agreement (#K9413) and asked that we review it and sign it. I have reviewed it and 
discovered some changes in Section 2.1 – Term (adjusting the contract term to January 1, 2015 to 
December 31, 2017); and section 3.11 Billing (setting a new daily base rate of $66.95).
 All other provisions of the 2013 contract remain in full force and effect.
The amendment has been reviewed by Nikki Esparza, City Attorney and approved for inclusion to the 
existing agreement.  

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Approved existing contract on January 5, 2013.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Washington State Department of Corrections 
Contract #K9413.

DISCUSSION

On October 20, 2014 the Washington State Department of Corrections sent an amendment to us for our 
existing Interagency Agreement (#K9413) and asked that we review it and sign it. I have reviewed it and 
discovered some changes in Section 2.1 – Term (adjusting the contract term to January 1, 2015 to 
December 31, 2017); and section 3.11 Billing (setting a new daily base rate of $66.95).
 All other provisions of the 2013 contract remain in full force and effect.
The amendment has been reviewed by Nikki Esparza, City Attorney and approved for inclusion to the 
existing agreement.  

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Approved existing contract on January 5, 2013.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Washington State Department of Corrections 
Contract #K9413.

DISCUSSION

  6.

81



DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement Amendment #1 (PREA)
2. Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement
3. Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement Amendment #2 (Term and Billing
Adjustment)

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement Amendment #1 (PREA)
2. Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement
3. Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement Amendment #2 (Term and Billing
Adjustment)

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. f.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1706:  Ordinance 
Repealing OHMC 2.04 entitled 
'Salary of Mayor and 
Councilmen'

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
Repeal OHMC 2.04 entitled 'Salary of Mayor and Councilmen'.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In 2005 City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1429 which created a new Chapter 2.02 of the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code entitled 'Salary Commission'.  The Salary Commission per OHMC 2.02.040 is 
tasked with reviewing and establishing salaries paid by the city to each elected city official.  The adoption

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. f.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1706:  Ordinance 
Repealing OHMC 2.04 entitled 
'Salary of Mayor and 
Councilmen'

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
Repeal OHMC 2.04 entitled 'Salary of Mayor and Councilmen'.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In 2005 City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1429 which created a new Chapter 2.02 of the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code entitled 'Salary Commission'.  The Salary Commission per OHMC 2.02.040 is 
tasked with reviewing and establishing salaries paid by the city to each elected city official.  The adoption tasked with reviewing and establishing salaries paid by the city to each elected city official.  The adoption
of Ordinance No. 1429 rendered OHMC 2.04 moot and OHMC 2.04 should have been removed from
the code simultaneously.  The purpose of the proposed action is to remove OHMC 2.04's contradictory
language from the code.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance #1706 repealing OHMC 2.04.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

tasked with reviewing and establishing salaries paid by the city to each elected city official.  The adoption 
of Ordinance No. 1429 rendered OHMC 2.04 moot and OHMC 2.04 should have been removed from 
the code simultaneously.  The purpose of the proposed action is to remove OHMC 2.04's contradictory 
language from the code.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance #1706 repealing OHMC 2.04.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

  6.

101



AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1706

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1706

102



Salary of Mayor/Councilmen Ordinance 

OHMC 2.04 

Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR REPEALING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE 

CHAPTER 2.04 ENTITLED "SALARY OF MAYOR AND COUNCILMEN"  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.04 entitled "Salary of Mayor and Councilmen" is hereby 

repealed since this is currently governed by Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.02 entitled "Salary 

Commission". 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance 

is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the provision to other persons or 

circumstances is not affected. 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after publication. 

PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2014. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Veto (    ) 

Approve (     ) 

By 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Dated: 

Attest: 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Published:  

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2014\Salary of Mayor and Councilmen Ord.docx 

103



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-38: Supporting 
NASWI during EIS Scoping 
Period

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill proposes a resolution offering the City’s support for additional EA-18G Growler aircraft
during the open EIS Scoping Period that concludes on November 24, 2014.  

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In late 2013 and early 2014, the Navy conducted an EIS scoping period to evaluate the potential 
environmental impacts of adding additional EA-18G Growler aircraft at NAS Whidbey Island. During the 
spring of 2014, the Chief of Naval Operations submitted a request to the President for fiscal year 2015 to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-38: Supporting 
NASWI during EIS Scoping 
Period

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill proposes a resolution offering the City’s support for additional EA-18G Growler aircraft 
during the open EIS Scoping Period that concludes on November 24, 2014.  

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In late 2013 and early 2014, the Navy conducted an EIS scoping period to evaluate the potential 
environmental impacts of adding additional EA-18G Growler aircraft at NAS Whidbey Island. During the 
spring of 2014, the Chief of Naval Operations submitted a request to the President for fiscal year 2015 to spring of 2014, the Chief of Naval Operations submitted a request to the President for fiscal year 2015 to 
purchase an additional 22 Growlers. While there is no certainty that these additional aircraft will be 
funded, the Navy is revising its original scoping document to evaluate this potential increase. 

The scoping period is now open and will conclude on November 24, 2014. As one way of re-confirming
the City of Oak Harbor’s support for the local NAS Whidbey Island mission in general and the new 
Growler squadrons in particular, the attached Resolution 14-38 is proposed that will, if approved, be 
submitted to the Navy during the EIS scoping period.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:  None anticipated
Appropriation Source:  NA

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 14-38.

spring of 2014, the Chief of Naval Operations submitted a request to the President for fiscal year 2015 to 
purchase an additional 22 Growlers. While there is no certainty that these additional aircraft will be 
funded, the Navy is revising its original scoping document to evaluate this potential increase. 

The scoping period is now open and will conclude on November 24, 2014. As one way of re-confirming 
the City of Oak Harbor’s support for the local NAS Whidbey Island mission in general and the new 
Growler squadrons in particular, the attached Resolution 14-38 is proposed that will, if approved, be 
submitted to the Navy during the EIS scoping period.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:  None anticipated
Appropriation Source:  NA

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 14-38.

  8.

104



DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution 14-38

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution 14-38

105



RESOLUTION 14-38 – Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-38 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, SUPPORTING 
THE ADDITION OF UP TO 36 EA-18G GROWLER AIRCRAFT AT NAVAL AIR STA-
TION WHIDBEY ISLAND AND ITS ASSOCIATED TRAINING FACILITIES 

WHEREAS, the Navy has published a Notice of Intent to revise the scope of the ongoing Environ-
mental Impact Statement (EIS) for EA-18G Growler Airfield Operations at Naval Air Station Whidbey 
Island; and 

WHEREAS, this revision to the EIS scoping review is necessary to evaluate the environmental im-
pacts of potentially increasing the number of EA-18G Growler aircraft to 36 at Naval Air Station Whid-
bey Island; and 

WHEREAS, the Navy has requested and welcomes public comment on the revised EIS scoping for 
the potential increase in the number of EA-18G Growler aircraft at Naval Air Station Whidbey Island, 
outreach that included three public meetings that were held on October 28, 29 and 30 in Coupeville, 
Oak Harbor and Anacortes respectively; and 

WHEREAS, comments on the revised EIS scoping period will conclude on November 24, 2014 and 
the City of Oak Harbor, through its Mayor and Council, wish to go on record in support of additional 
EA-18G Growler aircraft at Naval Air Station Whidbey Island and its associated training facilities;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor respectfully 
submits this Resolution to the Navy during the EIS re-scoping period as one means of expressing its 
strong support for Naval Air Station Whidbey Island, its personnel, its operations, and its training ac-
tivities and expresses gratitude for the service of its personnel to their fellow countrymen and women. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 5th day of November 2014. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_____________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

______________________________ 
Danny Paggao, Mayor Pro Tem 

______________________________ 
Rick Almberg, Councilmember 

______________________________ 
Jim Campbell, Councilmember 

106



RESOLUTION 14-38 – Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
 ______________________________ 
 Tara Hizon, Councilmember 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Beth Munns, Councilmember 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Joel Servatius, Councilmember 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Bob Severns, Councilmember 
 
  
 
 
Attest:  Approved as to form: 
 
 
___________________________ _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 

 

 

107



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six 
Year Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP)

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the proposed 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
for Council consideration.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program
(TIP).  The primary purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use of Federal transportation funds awarded to the 
City.  Projects that have Federal funding must appear in the Six-Year TIP at the local and State level so 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six 
Year Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP)

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the proposed 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
for Council consideration.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP).  The primary purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use of Federal transportation funds awarded to the 
City.  Projects that have Federal funding must appear in the Six-Year TIP at the local and State level so City.  Projects that have Federal funding must appear in the Six-Year TIP at the local and State level so 
that the City can obligate and eventually use the Federal funds.

The projects listed on the TIP are coordinated with those listed in the Transportation Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Coordinating projects among the Transportation Comprehensive Plan, the Six-
Year TIP, and the Capital Facilities Plan facilitates our collaboration with other agencies and work with 
utility companies, and our communication with the public on planned transportation projects. It also helps 
the City remain focused on a manageable list of transportation projects. 

The Six-Year TIP form includes a number of codes and symbols used in the statewide management of 
the regional TIP documents.  A copy of the TIP code key is attached.  A symbol in the status column of
“S” means funding is secured while a symbol of “P” indicates the project is not currently funded.  The 
form of the Six-Year TIP includes a priority number associated with each project.  Please note that the 
priority numbering in the TIP is not intended to supersede or be superimposed into the citywide effort of
overall capital project prioritization. 

The following projects are included in the TIP:

1. SW Heller Street Improvements – Swantown to Whidbey
2. Whidbey Avenue Reconstruction – Heller to Regatta

City.  Projects that have Federal funding must appear in the Six-Year TIP at the local and State level so 
that the City can obligate and eventually use the Federal funds.

The projects listed on the TIP are coordinated with those listed in the Transportation Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Coordinating projects among the Transportation Comprehensive Plan, the Six-
Year TIP, and the Capital Facilities Plan facilitates our collaboration with other agencies and work with 
utility companies, and our communication with the public on planned transportation projects. It also helps 
the City remain focused on a manageable list of transportation projects. 

The Six-Year TIP form includes a number of codes and symbols used in the statewide management of 
the regional TIP documents.  A copy of the TIP code key is attached.  A symbol in the status column of 
“S” means funding is secured while a symbol of “P” indicates the project is not currently funded.  The 
form of the Six-Year TIP includes a priority number associated with each project.  Please note that the 
priority numbering in the TIP is not intended to supersede or be superimposed into the citywide effort of 
overall capital project prioritization. 

The following projects are included in the TIP:

1. SW Heller Street Improvements – Swantown to Whidbey
2. Whidbey Avenue Reconstruction – Heller to Regatta

   9.

108



3. Midway / NE 7th – Intersection Signalization
4. Eagle Vista Extension – SR-20 to SW Rosario Place
5. SE 4th Reconstruction – Midway to Ely
6. SR-20 Improvements – Roundabouts
7. Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing
8. Water Front Trail Enhancement Project
9. NW Heller Street Overlay – Whidbey to Crosby

10. Update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan

The two bottom projects have been added to the running list for TIP this year: the overlay of NW Heller
Street and the update of the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.

The Heller project is a 2-inch-thick overlay of the surface of NW Heller Street, from West Whidbey 
Avenue to NW Crosby Avenue. The purpose of the project is to preserve the existing road by replacing
the wearing surface of the street. The curb ramps in the project area will also be reconstructed as part of
this project; this will enhance safety and increase compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The update of the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan is required for cities (such as Oak 
Harbor) that plan in accordance with the Washington Growth Management Act (GMA). The deadline for 
our update to the Comprehensive Plan is June 30, 2016. The Transportation Element is the foundation for 
the City’s planned transportation projects in the near-term future which will describe and prioritize 
projects following a thorough public involvement process.

As was previously noted, the City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year TIP.  This 

3. Midway / NE 7th – Intersection Signalization
4. Eagle Vista Extension – SR-20 to SW Rosario Place
5. SE 4th Reconstruction – Midway to Ely
6. SR-20 Improvements – Roundabouts
7. Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing
8. Water Front Trail Enhancement Project
9. NW Heller Street Overlay – Whidbey to Crosby

10. Update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan

The two bottom projects have been added to the running list for TIP this year: the overlay of NW Heller 
Street and the update of the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.

The Heller project is a 2-inch-thick overlay of the surface of NW Heller Street, from West Whidbey 
Avenue to NW Crosby Avenue. The purpose of the project is to preserve the existing road by replacing 
the wearing surface of the street. The curb ramps in the project area will also be reconstructed as part of 
this project; this will enhance safety and increase compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The update of the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan is required for cities (such as Oak 
Harbor) that plan in accordance with the Washington Growth Management Act (GMA). The deadline for 
our update to the Comprehensive Plan is June 30, 2016. The Transportation Element is the foundation for 
the City’s planned transportation projects in the near-term future which will describe and prioritize 
projects following a thorough public involvement process.

As was previously noted, the City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year TIP.  This As was previously noted, the City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year TIP.  This 
submittal process is accomplished in conjunction with the Regional Transportation Planning Organization
(RTPO).  Once approved by the Council, the City’s TIP is submitted to the RTPO.  In turn, the RTPO
submits a regional TIP to the State each year.  The State then prepares a statewide TIP in January of 
each year.  The incorporation of the City’s projects into this statewide TIP is what enables Oak Harbor 
to spend Federal funds on local transportation projects.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
The TIP was not presented at a Council Workshop.  It was presented to the Planning Commission on 
October 28, 2014. The Planning Commission held a public hearing and moved to forward a 
recommendation for approval to City Council. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Conduct a public hearing.
2. Adopt Resolution 14-37 approving the 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation Improvement

As was previously noted, the City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year TIP.  This 
submittal process is accomplished in conjunction with the Regional Transportation Planning Organization 
(RTPO).  Once approved by the Council, the City’s TIP is submitted to the RTPO.  In turn, the RTPO 
submits a regional TIP to the State each year.  The State then prepares a statewide TIP in January of 
each year.  The incorporation of the City’s projects into this statewide TIP is what enables Oak Harbor 
to spend Federal funds on local transportation projects.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
The TIP was not presented at a Council Workshop.  It was presented to the Planning Commission on 
October 28, 2014. The Planning Commission held a public hearing and moved to forward a 
recommendation for approval to City Council. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Conduct a public hearing.
2. Adopt Resolution 14-37 approving the 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation Improvement

109



Program (TIP). 

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
The City is authorized and required to adopt a Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program and 
forward the program to the State of Washington under RCW 35.77.010.

ATTACHMENTS
1. TIP Code Key
2. Resolution 14-37
3. STIP Locations
4. TIP Report

Program (TIP). 

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
The City is authorized and required to adopt a Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program and 
forward the program to the State of Washington under RCW 35.77.010.

ATTACHMENTS
1. TIP Code Key
2. Resolution 14-37
3. STIP Locations
4. TIP Report

110



71 

 

APPENDIX A 

                      IMPROVEMENT TYPE CODES 

01 – New Construction Roadway 

03 – Reconstruction, Added Capacity 

04 – Reconstruction, No Added Capacity 

05 – 4R Maintenance Resurfacing 

06 – 4R Maintenance – Restoration & Rehabilitation 

07 – 4R Maintenance – Relocation 

08 – Bridge, New Construction 

10 – Bridge Replacement, Added Capacity 

11 – Bridge Replacement, No Added Capacity 

13 – Bridge Rehabilitation, Added Capacity 

14 – Bridge Rehabilitation, No Added Capacity 

15 – Preliminary Engineering 

16 – Right of Way 

17 – Construction Engineering 

18 – Planning 

19 – Research 

20 – Environmental Only 

21 – Safety 

22 – Rail/Highway Crossing 

23 – Transit 

24 – Traffic Management/Engineering – HOV 

 

 

111



72 

 

APPENDIX A (continued) 

      IMPROVEMENT TYPE CODES 

25 – Vehicle Weight Enforcement Program 

26 – Ferry Boats 

27 – Administration 

28 – Facilities for Pedestrians and Bicycles 

29 – Acquisition of Scenic Easements and Scenic or Historic Sites 

30 – Scenic or Historic Highway Programs 

31 – Landscaping and Other Scenic Beautification 

32 – Historic Preservation 

33 – Rehab & Operation of Historic Transp. Buildings, Structures, Facilities 

34 – Preservation of Abandoned Railway Corridors 

35 – Control and Removal of Outdoor Advertising 

36 – Archaeological Planning & Research 

37 – Mitigation of Water Pollution due to Highway Runoff 

38 – Safety and Education for Pedestrians/Bicyclists 

39 – Establishment of Transportation Museums 

40 – Special Bridge 

41 – Youth Conservation Service  

42 – Training 

43 – Utilities 

44 – Other 

45 – Debt Service  

47 – Systematic Preventive Maintenance                                                                                        
  

112



73 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

                         FEDERAL FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS 

 

                                            No Functional Classification 

     < 5,000 Population    > 5,000 Population 

    Interstate Rural     Interstate Urban 

    Principal Arterial Rural    Freeways & Expressways Urban  

   Minor Arterial Rural     Other Principal Arterials Urban 

   Major Collector Rural    Minor Arterial Urban   

   Minor Collector Rural    Collector Urban 

   Local Access Rural        Local Access Urban 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

113



74 

 

APPENDIX C 

                            FEDERAL FUND CODES 

5307    FTA Urbanized Area Formula Program 

5309(Bus)   FTA Bus and Bus Facilities 

5309(FG)   FTA Fixed Guideway Modernization 

5309(NS)   FTA New Starts 

5310    FTA Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities 

5311    FTA Rural Area Formula Grants 

5316 FTA Job Access & Reverse Commute Program 
(JARC) 

5317 FTA New Freedom Program 

FTA Discretionary Discretionary Programs such as Alternatives Analysis 
(5339) and TIGGER Program 

BIA    Bureau of Indian Affairs 

BR    Bridge Replacement/Rehabilitation Program 

CBI    Coordinated Border Infrastructure 

CDBG Community Development Block Grant (Dept. of      
Commerce) 

CMAQ   Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 

DEMO  Demonstration Projects (High Priority, Sect. 112, 115, 
117, 125 and 129) 

Discretionary – FBD  Ferry Boat Discretionary 

Discretionary – IMD  Interstate Maintenance Discretionary 

Discretionary – ITS  intelligent Transportation Systems 

Discretionary – PLH  Public Lands Highways (Federal Lands) 

Discretionary – SB  Scenic Byways 

Discretionary – STP  Surface Transportation Priorities 

114



75 

 

                  APPENDIX C (continued) 

                            FEDERAL FUND CODES  

 

Discretionary – TCSP Transportation, Community & System Preservation    
Program 

DOD Department of Defense 

FMSIB Freight Mobility Strategic Investment  Board 

IM Interstate Maintenance 

IRR Indian Reservation Roads 

NHS National Highway System 

SRTS Safe Routes to Schools 

STP Surface Transportation Program (WSDOT Use Only) 

STP(E) Surface Trans. Program -  Enhancements 

STP(L) Surface Trans. Program – Legislative Earmarks 

 

STP(S) Surface Trans. Program – Safety (Includes Highway 
Safety Improvement Program, Hazard Elimination, 
Railway/Highway Crossing Program and 2010-15 
County Road Safety Program) 

STP(R) Surface Trans. Program – Rural Regionally Selected 

STP(U) Surface Trans. Program – Urban Regionally Selected 

 

 

 

 

 

 

115



76 

 

 

APPENDIX C (continued) 

STATE FUND CODES 

CRAB     County Road Administration Board 

FMSIB      Freight Mobility Strategic Investment Board 

PWTF      Public Works Trust Fund 

SRTS       Safe Routes to Schools 

TIB       Transportation Improvement Board 

TPP       Transportation Partnerships Program 

WSDOT      WSDOT funds 

OTHER      Any other state funds not listed a 

116



RESOLUTION NO. 14-37 

RESOLUTION adopting the 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program. 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has reviewed the work accomplished under the prior Six-Year 

Transportation Improvement Program (2014-2019); and  

WHEREAS, after an extensive public involvement process the City of Oak Harbor adopted a  

Comprehensive Plan Transportation Element on January 15, 2008 which established the six-year and long term 

transportation needs for the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed 2015-2020 Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP) on October 28, 2014 and recommended approval; and 

WHEREAS, with respect to the provisions of RCW 35.77.010(2) the City Council finds that the City 

has identified non-motorized transportation projects in the form of trail projects and street projects which 

include trail and bikeway components; and 

WHEREAS, with respect to the provisions of RCW 35.77.010(3) the City Council finds that the City is 

not served by rail transportation and therefore need not plan to preserve railroad right-of-way; and  

WHEREAS,  proper notice has been given; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held at the regular Council meeting on November 5, 2014, at the hour 

of 6:00 p.m. and at said hearing, the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 2015-2020 was presented. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, 

Washington that the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 2015-2020, a copy of which is attached 

hereto, is hereby adopted as the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 2015-2020 for the City of Oak 

Harbor for the ensuing year, and previous plans are amended accordingly. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 5
th

 day of

November, 2014. 

117



Resolution 14-/// 

Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Page 2 of 2 

       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

             

       MAYOR 

 

Attest: 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

      

City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

118



119



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 1 WA-05970 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 04 C G O P S 
T W

0.780 CE Yes

SW Heller Street Improvements

SW Heller Street

SW Swantown Ave to W Whidbey Ave

R/W Acq., pave, curb, gutter, sidewalk, utilities, transit

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2018 0 0 1,134,000 1,134,000

P RW 2019 0 0 486,000 486,000

P CN 2020 0 0 6,480,000 6,480,000

Totals 0 0 8,100,000 8,100,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 0 600,000 534,000 0

RW 0 0 0 286,000 200,000

CN 0 0 0 0 6,480,000

Totals 0 0 600,000 820,000 6,680,000

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 1

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

120



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 2 WA-05971 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 03 C G P T W 1.800 CE No

Whidbey Avenue Reconstruction

Whidbey Avenue

Heller St to Regatta Dr

Sidewalk, curb & gutter, drainage, transit facilities, non-motorized

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2017 0 0 1,232,000 1,232,000

P CN 2019 0 0 7,568,000 7,568,000

Totals 0 0 8,800,000 8,800,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 600,000 632,000 0 0

CN 0 0 0 7,568,000 0

Totals 0 600,000 632,000 7,568,000 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 2

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

121



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 3 WA-05972 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 03 C G O P S 
T W

CE No

Midway Blvd / NE 7th Ave Intersection Signalization

NE Midway Blvd

to 

Traffic Signal

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2016 0 0 114,000 114,000

P RW 2017 0 0 76,000 76,000

P CN 2018 0 0 760,000 760,000

Totals 0 0 950,000 950,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 11,400 0 0 0 0

RW 0 76,000 0 0 0

CN 0 0 760,000 0 0

Totals 11,400 76,000 760,000 0 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 3

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

122



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

17 4 WA-05973 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 01 C G O P S 
T W

0.410 CE No

Eagle Vista Street - West Extension

SW Eagle Vista St

SR-20 to SW Rosario Pl

Street extension

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2016 0 0 420,000 420,000

P CN 2018 0 0 2,580,000 2,580,000

Totals 0 0 3,000,000 3,000,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 420,000 0 0 0 0

CN 0 2,580,000 0 0 0

Totals 420,000 2,580,000 0 0 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 4

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

123



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

19 5 WA-05974 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 04 C G O P S 
T W

0.410 CE No

SE 4th Ave Reconstruction

SE 4th Ave

SW Midway Blvd to SE Ely St

Street reconstruction, sidewalk, curb & gutter, storm water facilities, utilites

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2018 0 0 342,000 342,000

P CN 2019 0 0 2,098,000 2,098,000

Totals 0 0 2,440,000 2,440,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 0 342,000 0 0

CN 0 0 0 2,098,000 0

Totals 0 0 342,000 2,098,000 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 5

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

124



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

14 6 WA-05976 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 03 C G O P S 
T W

0.690 CE Yes

SR-20 Improvement

SR-20

SE Barrington Dr to SW Swantown Ave

R/W Acq., intersection improvements & channelization, widening, sidewalk, curb & 
gutter, retaining walls, & landscaping.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2019 0 WSDOT 3,100,000 116,000 3,216,000

P RW 2020 0 WSDOT 5,000,000 186,000 5,186,000

P CN 2020 0 WSDOT 16,000,000 1,528,000 17,528,000

Totals 0 24,100,000 1,830,000 25,930,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 0 0 1,500,000 1,716,000

RW 0 0 0 0 5,186,000

CN 0 0 0 0 17,528,000

Totals 0 0 0 1,500,000 24,430,000

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 6

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

125



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 7 WA-06095 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 28 C G O P S 
T W

CE No

Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

E Whidbey Ave

E Whidbey Ave to E Whidbey Ave

Mid-block pedestrian crossing, center refuge island, pedestrian-activated warning 
system, ADA retrofit, sidewalk

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

S PE 2015 TAP(US) 22,000 0 0 22,000

S CN 2015 TAP(US) 202,500 0 0 202,500

Totals 224,500 0 0 224,500

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 22,000 0 0 0 0

CN 202,500 0 0 0 0

Totals 224,500 0 0 0 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 7

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

126



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

00 8 WA-06418 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 28 C G P S T 
W

2.090 CE No

Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project

Waterfront Trail

Oak Harbor Marina to SW Scenic Heights St

Complete project scope include repair of damaged section of existing trail, 
construction of new sidewalk, installing way-finding information, landscaping, historic 
and environmental education.  As funded the project is limited to repair component 
only.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

S PE 2015 TAP(US) 30,000 0 0 30,000

S CN 2017 TAP(US) 120,000 0 0 120,000

Totals 150,000 0 0 150,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 30,000 0 0 0 0

CN 0 0 120,000 0 0

Totals 30,000 0 120,000 0 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 8

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

127



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 9 WA-07425 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 06 0.600 CE No

NW Heller Street Overlay

NW Heller St.

W. Whidbey Ave. to NW Crosby Ave.

2-inch thick overlay to surface for maintenance; replace curb ramps; striping.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2015 STP(R) 29,410 0 4,590 34,000

P CN 2015 STP(R) 269,015 0 41,985 311,000

Totals 298,425 0 46,575 345,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 34,000 0 0 0 0

CN 311,000 0 0 0 0

Totals 345,000 0 0 0 0

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 9

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

128



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

00 10 WA-07426 10/28/14 11/05/14 14-37 18 CE No

Update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan

N/A

to 

GMA-Required Update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2015 STP(R) 208,465 0 32,535 241,000

Totals 208,465 0 32,535 241,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 241,000 0 0 0 0

Totals 241,000 0 0 0 0

Federal Funds State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

Grand Totals for Oak Harbor 881,390 24,100,000 25,199,110 50,180,500

Report Date: October 15, 2014 Page 10

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2015 to 2020

129



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1703: 2014 
Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments

FROM: Steve Powers 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This memo presents the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments consist of revisions 
to the Future Land Use Map, to the Urban Design Element (Goal 5; scenic views) and to the Capital 
Improvements Plan, the latter to be presented in conjunction with the 2015-2016 Budget.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City Council approved the docket for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 18, 
2014.  The docket included UGA boundary corrections to the Future Land Use Map, a land use change 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1703: 2014 
Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments

FROM: Steve Powers 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This memo presents the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments consist of revisions 
to the Future Land Use Map, to the Urban Design Element (Goal 5; scenic views) and to the Capital 
Improvements Plan, the latter to be presented in conjunction with the 2015-2016 Budget.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City Council approved the docket for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 18, 
2014.  The docket included UGA boundary corrections to the Future Land Use Map, a land use change 2014.  The docket included UGA boundary corrections to the Future Land Use Map, a land use change 
for 1000 SE City Beach Street (from High Density Residential to Public Facilities), an amendment to the 
Urban Design Element (the possible identification of scenic view corridors) and an update to the Capital

Improvements Plan
[1]

.  The docket was established and the proposed amendments were processed
according the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process.

1000 SE City Beach Street – High Density Residential to Public Facilities
The property at 1000 SE City Beach Street is owned by the City and designated as High Density 
Residential.  The 2013 Comprehensive Plan docket included a potentiation land use change (from High 
Density Residential to Public Facilities) for this property since it was determined that the current land use 
designation was not likely to be utilized under City ownership.  It was further determined that the Public 
Facilities designation was more appropriate since most City-owned land owned is designated and used as 
such.  The Public Facilities designation is also appropriate for the probable use of the property as a 
private burial ground/cemetery to accommodate the cultural resources that were uncovered during the 
Pioneer Way reconstruction project.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider this 
amendment at its July 22, 2014 meeting and recommended amending the Future Land Use map and 
changing the designation from High Density Residential to Public Facilities.  Please see Attachment 1 for 
the staff report and minutes from that Planning Commission meeting.

UGA Boundary Correction – Future Land Use Map

2014.  The docket included UGA boundary corrections to the Future Land Use Map, a land use change 
for 1000 SE City Beach Street (from High Density Residential to Public Facilities), an amendment to the 
Urban Design Element (the possible identification of scenic view corridors) and an update to the Capital 

Improvements Plan
[1]

.  The docket was established and the proposed amendments were processed
according the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process.

1000 SE City Beach Street – High Density Residential to Public Facilities
The property at 1000 SE City Beach Street is owned by the City and designated as High Density 
Residential.  The 2013 Comprehensive Plan docket included a potentiation land use change (from High 
Density Residential to Public Facilities) for this property since it was determined that the current land use 
designation was not likely to be utilized under City ownership.  It was further determined that the Public 
Facilities designation was more appropriate since most City-owned land owned is designated and used as 
such.  The Public Facilities designation is also appropriate for the probable use of the property as a 
private burial ground/cemetery to accommodate the cultural resources that were uncovered during the 
Pioneer Way reconstruction project.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider this 
amendment at its July 22, 2014 meeting and recommended amending the Future Land Use map and 
changing the designation from High Density Residential to Public Facilities.  Please see Attachment 1 for 
the staff report and minutes from that Planning Commission meeting.

UGA Boundary Correction – Future Land Use Map

   9.

130



This item was added to the docket to correct the UGA boundary and reflect Island County’s decision on
the City’s proposed 2005 UGA amendments.  Since the City amended its Future Land Use map in 2005 
to include the City approved amendments, the map must be corrected to remove these areas.  This 
change by itself is a Comprehensive Plan amendment.  The Planning Commission was introduced to this 
amendment on July 22, 2014.  A public hearing on this item was held on August 26, 2014 and the 
Planning Commission recommended amending the Future Land Use map to correct the UGA boundary. 
Please see Attachment 2 for the staff report and minutes from that Planning Commission meeting.

Scenic View Corridors
The Planning Commission recommended and the City Council approved of adding the Scenic View study
to the 2012 Comprehensive Plan Docket.  The study was categorized as “Discretionary” in accordance 
with the priority system established in OHMC 18.50.050.  The study was initiated with a public outreach
effort that solicited photos from citizens on scenic views within Oak Harbor.  Based on the public 
outreach, a list of 27 views was compiled for the Planning Commission’s consideration.  Working with 
staff, the Planning Commission developed a ranking system that utilized weighted criteria.  The views 
were discussed with the Planning Commission and each view was rated against the pre-established 
criteria.  This process narrowed the scenic views of interest to nine potential views.  The Planning 
Commission reviewed the nine potential views and narrowed it down further to four views.  This 
narrowing was based primarily on how preserving certain views might impact private property.  After 
conducting a public hearing on August 26, 2014 the Planning Commission recommended amending Goal
5 of the Urban Design Element to recognize and protect the four views. Please see Attachment 3 for the 
staff report and minutes from that Planning Commission meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION

As was noted above, the Planning Commission conducted individual public hearings (July 22nd and 
August 26th) on the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments were reviewed against the 

This item was added to the docket to correct the UGA boundary and reflect Island County’s decision on 
the City’s proposed 2005 UGA amendments.  Since the City amended its Future Land Use map in 2005 
to include the City approved amendments, the map must be corrected to remove these areas.  This 
change by itself is a Comprehensive Plan amendment.  The Planning Commission was introduced to this 
amendment on July 22, 2014.  A public hearing on this item was held on August 26, 2014 and the 
Planning Commission recommended amending the Future Land Use map to correct the UGA boundary. 
Please see Attachment 2 for the staff report and minutes from that Planning Commission meeting.

Scenic View Corridors
The Planning Commission recommended and the City Council approved of adding the Scenic View study 
to the 2012 Comprehensive Plan Docket.  The study was categorized as “Discretionary” in accordance 
with the priority system established in OHMC 18.50.050.  The study was initiated with a public outreach 
effort that solicited photos from citizens on scenic views within Oak Harbor.  Based on the public 
outreach, a list of 27 views was compiled for the Planning Commission’s consideration.  Working with 
staff, the Planning Commission developed a ranking system that utilized weighted criteria.  The views 
were discussed with the Planning Commission and each view was rated against the pre-established 
criteria.  This process narrowed the scenic views of interest to nine potential views.  The Planning 
Commission reviewed the nine potential views and narrowed it down further to four views.  This 
narrowing was based primarily on how preserving certain views might impact private property.  After 
conducting a public hearing on August 26, 2014 the Planning Commission recommended amending Goal 
5 of the Urban Design Element to recognize and protect the four views. Please see Attachment 3 for the 
staff report and minutes from that Planning Commission meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION

As was noted above, the Planning Commission conducted individual public hearings (July 22nd and 
August 26th) on the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments were reviewed against the August 26th) on the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments were reviewed against the 
standards of OHMC Section 18.15.080, Annual Amendment Decision Criteria.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearings the Commission recommended approval of the proposed amendments.  The Planning 

Commission took a separate action at their October 28th meeting to forward their recommendations to 
the City Council.

CONCLUSION
The 2014 Comprehensive Plan docket included two map amendments, one policy revision and a major 
update to the CIP.  The Planning Commission fulfilled their obligation to review the proposed 
amendments, conduct public hearings, and forward a recommendation on these items to the City 
Council.  This work was accomplished in accordance with the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process.  The City Council must now conduct its own public hearing 
and take action on the proposed amendments.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 1703 would have the 
Council accepting the Planning Commission’s recommendations and approving the amendments.

[1]
Please note that this year the CIP will be adopted concurrent with the budget in accordance with RCW 

36.70A.130 and is not presented as part of this agenda bill.

August 26th) on the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments were reviewed against the 
standards of OHMC Section 18.15.080, Annual Amendment Decision Criteria.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearings the Commission recommended approval of the proposed amendments.  The Planning 

Commission took a separate action at their October 28th meeting to forward their recommendations to 
the City Council.

CONCLUSION
The 2014 Comprehensive Plan docket included two map amendments, one policy revision and a major 
update to the CIP.  The Planning Commission fulfilled their obligation to review the proposed 
amendments, conduct public hearings, and forward a recommendation on these items to the City 
Council.  This work was accomplished in accordance with the provisions of OHMC Chapter 18.15, 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process.  The City Council must now conduct its own public hearing 
and take action on the proposed amendments.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 1703 would have the 
Council accepting the Planning Commission’s recommendations and approving the amendments.

[1]
Please note that this year the CIP will be adopted concurrent with the budget in accordance with RCW 

36.70A.130 and is not presented as part of this agenda bill.

131



FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Adopting amendments to the Future Land Use Map and to the Urban Design Element are not anticipated 
to have any immediate fiscal impacts.  Implementation of CIP projects will require the expenditure of 
public funds.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing 
 Adopt Ordinance No. 1703 approving the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments. 

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission report and minutes from 7/22/14 - 1000 SE City Beach Street
2. Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - UGA Boundary amendment/correction

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Adopting amendments to the Future Land Use Map and to the Urban Design Element are not anticipated 
to have any immediate fiscal impacts.  Implementation of CIP projects will require the expenditure of 
public funds.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing 
 Adopt Ordinance No. 1703 approving the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments. 

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission report and minutes from 7/22/14 - 1000 SE City Beach Street
2. Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - UGA Boundary amendment/correction
1. Planning Commission report and minutes from 7/22/14 - 1000 SE City Beach Street
2. Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - UGA Boundary amendment/correction
3. Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - Scenic View Corridors
4. Ordinance No. 1703

1. Planning Commission report and minutes from 7/22/14 - 1000 SE City Beach Street
2. Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - UGA Boundary amendment/correction
3. Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - Scenic View Corridors
4. Ordinance No. 1703

132



CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE – 

1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET 

DATE: JUNE 24, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this memo to introduce a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the 

land use designation for 1000 SE City Beach Street from High Density Residential to 

Public Facilities.  This item was placed on the Comprehensive Plan Docket in 2013.   

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC 18.15.  This land 

use amendment was placed on the preliminary docket in 2013 by the Development 

Services Director in accordance with OHMC 18.15.030(1)(d) and approved by the City 

Council on March 5, 2013.  Public notification on the project will be in accordance to the 

requirements set forth in OHMC 18.20.380(5).  The land use change along with the other 

comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria established 

under OHMC 18.15.080.   

BACKGROUND 

The property at 1000 SE City Beach Street is owned by the City and designated as High 

Density Residential.  The property was placed on the 2013 docket for a land use change 

since the City determined that the current High Density Residential land use designation 

is not likely to be realized under City ownership. A more appropriate designation would 

be Public Facilities since most land owned by the City is designated as Public Facilities 

and used as such.   

At the time this property was placed on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket, the 

property was under consideration to be used as a private burial ground/cemetery to 

accommodate the cultural resources that were uncovered with the construction of Pioneer 

Way.  Work on recovering the cultural resources was still in progress at that time and no 

firm decision was made on whether this land may be needed for that purpose.  Since a 

Memorandum of Settlement has now been reached between the City and the Swinomish 

Indian Tribal Community, this property is proposed to accommodate the archaeological 

and cultural resources uncovered during the Pioneer Way project.   

133



2 

DISCUSSION 

Site Characteristics 

Whether the property is used for a private burial ground or city facilities, it is important 

to determine if the proposed Public Facilities designation is an appropriate fit for this 

property and surrounding area.  This 1.9 acre property is surrounded by a mix of land 

uses ranging from High Density Residential to Community Commercial and Residential 

Office (see attached map).  The property takes its access off of SE City Beach Street 

which dead ends at the property approximately 200 feet north from Barrington Drive.  

Currently the property is vacant and is fenced off. 

Review Criteria 

OHMC 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are 

provided below. 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in 

any significant way. 

The property is currently vacant and is designated as High Density Residential on 

the City’s Future Land Use Map.  High Density Residential designation is 

intended to accommodate a minimum of 12 dwelling units up to a maximum 

density of 22 units.  The implementing zoning district for High Density 

Residential is R4, Multifamily District.  The R4 zoning district permits 

conditional uses such as churches, hospitals, group homes, schools, parks etc.  

The proposed change to Public Facilities designation will accommodate a slightly 

different set of uses, but as stated in the purpose statement
1
, is intended to

accommodate parks, schools, churches, government offices, utility structures, 

public and quasi-public uses. The implementing zoning district for Public 

Facilities permits these uses outright.  Therefore, although the High Density 

District conditions most of the uses and the Public Facilities District permits them 

outright, both zoning districts accommodate similar uses.  Therefore, the change 

in designation is unlikely to create impacts that will adversely affect the public 

health, safety and welfare in a significant way than what would be permitted 

without the change. 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

1
 Public Facilities.  The Public Facilities district accommodates public facilities and institutional land uses 

such as public parks, schools, churches, governmental offices, public works yards, utility structures, 

hospitals, and other similar public and quasi-public uses.  This designation aids the City and the public in 

planning and budgeting for public facilities, while minimizing potential conflicts between incompatible 

land uses.  

134



3 

As mentioned above, the existing designation and the proposed designation 

accommodate similar public uses.  Under City ownership, the property will likely 

not be used for residential purposes and therefore residential capacity in this 

property will likely not be included as capacity available for residential growth.  

Therefore, the property would have been likely used for purposes other than 

housing regardless of the designation.  The change to Public Facilities will allow 

uses outright as opposed to a conditional use process.  Public Facilities 

designations are currently dispersed throughout the community and are 

immediately adjacent to many different designations ranging from low density 

residential to commercial and industrial.  Changing the land use designation on 

this property to Public Facilities will not likely create adverse impacts and is not 

inconsistent with established goals and policies within the Comprehensive Plan.   

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 

countywide planning policies. 

The proposed change to the land use designation does not create any 

inconsistencies with the Growth Management Act or the County Wide Policies. 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community 

as a whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

This proposed land use change is not intended to resolve inconsistencies.  

However, this change can be viewed as an amendment that addresses changing 

circumstances.  Changing this property land use designation from High Density 

Residential to Public Facilities provides the City a chance to address the needs 

and impacts that resulted from the Pioneer Street reconstruction property which 

can be considered as a changing circumstance of the community.  If the subject 

property is not used for this purpose it could then be used for another public 

purpose. 

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA 

review and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from the land use change.  

However, development of the property will need to meet the requirements of Oak 

Harbor’s Municipal Code and may require a SEPA review.  Any impacts can be 

addressed at the time of development.  As mentioned earlier, since similar uses 

are accommodated in both designations, environmental impacts will not be 

significantly different due to the change. 

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which 

were the basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth 

allocations. 

Although the current designation for the property is High Density Residential, the 

property will not likely be developed for residential uses under the City’s 

ownership.  Therefore, residential capacity of this property would have not been 

135



4 

included into the growth projection needs of the City.  Therefore, the change in 

land use to Public Facilities will not impact land capacity and growth projections. 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and 

surrounding neighborhoods. 

As stated earlier, the current High Density Residential land use designation and 

the proposed Public Facilities land use designation accommodate similar uses.  

Therefore land uses on this property with the change will be generally compatible 

with surrounding land uses. A proposed use for this property as per the settlement 

agreement with the Swinomish Indian Tribal Community is to use it for a burial 

ground/cemetery and or a memorial which is a passive use and will be compatible 

with the adjacent uses.   

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city 

council.  

This is not applicable for this change since it does not address a new policy 

direction. 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the 

process.  

Not applicable. 

From the above review, it can be determined that there will not likely be adverse impacts 

from changing the land use designations for the property from High Density Residential 

to Public Facilities since both designations support similar uses.  

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing

 Recommend amending the Future Land Use Map designation for 1000 SE City

Beach Street from High Density Residential to Public Facilities.

136



1000 City Beach Street – Land Use Designation

137



138



Planning Commission
July 22, 2014

Page 1 of 2

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
July 22, 2014 

ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger and
Kristi Jensen
Absent: Ana Schlecht 
Staff Present:  Senior Planner, Cac Kamak

Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO APPROVE THE JUNE 24, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
No comments.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT – 1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET 
- Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) which listed the criteria used to
review the land use map amendment proposed for 1000 City Beach Street.  The property is
owned by the City and is currently designated as High Density Residential.  The proposal is to
change the land use designation to Public Facilities (PF).  Since the City owns the property that
it will not likely be developed as High Density Residential so Public Facilities is a more suitable
designation for the property.

Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing at 7:43 p.m.  Seeing none the public hearing was
closed.

Planning Commission Discussion
Planning Commission asked who would be responsible for the costs associated with
transferring the remains to the property.  Mr. Kamak indicated that the settlement agreement
with the Tribe is that if the PF land use designation is approved the property will be transferred
to the tribe so that the remains from Pioneer Way can be placed at this site and the tribe would
be responsible for arrangements on the property.

ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE AMEMDMENT TO 
THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP CHANGING THE DESIGNATION OF 1000 SE 
CITY BEACH STREET FROM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO PUBLIC 
FACILITIES. 

2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CORRECTION TO URBAN GROWTH AREA 
(UGA) – Public meeting 
Mr. Kamak displayed a map (Attachment 2) showing the areas to be removed from the City’s 
UGA.  Mr. Kamak explained that the areas were added to the City’s UGA during the 2005 
Comprehensive Plan amendment cycle and that the County denied all of UGA expansion areas
except for one area north of Ault Field Road.   The City appealed the County’s decision to the 
Growth Management Board and Superior Court which upheld the County’s decision.  Now the

ATTACHMENT 1

139

gifford
Highlight



CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – URBAN GROWTH AREA 

AMENDMENT/CORRECTION 

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to review the Comprehensive Plan Amendment proposed to 

correct the Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundaries and reflect the County’s decision 

regarding the 2005 UGA expansion.  The correction involves removing areas from the 

City’s Future Land Use map that was originally adopted in 2005.  Undertaking this 

correction and amending the Future Land Use map will allow the City to set a clean slate 

for discussions regarding the 2016 update to the Comprehensive Plan and the next twenty 

year population projection.  

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC 18.15.  This 

Future Land Use Map amendment was placed on the preliminary docket this year to 

correct the map so that it is not confusing when discussion of the next 20 year population 

projection occurs for the County.  Public notification on the project will be in accordance 

to the requirements set forth in OHMC 18.20.380(5).  The land use change along with the 

other comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria 

established under OHMC 18.15.080.   

BACKGROUND 

The City adopted a Future Land Use Map in 2005 with amendments to its UGA 

boundaries based on a population projection and land capacity analysis.  At that time, 

efforts to determine population projections and land capacity where done by the local 

jurisdiction and then forwarded to the County for action.  Therefore, the City adopted 

areas for expansion, denoted by green dotted lines in the attached map (Exhibit A).  The 

City then forwarded the amendments to the County for final approval.  However, the 

County did not agree on all the proposed amendments and the issue was debated for 

several years.  Eventually the County approved a UGA expansion that included only the 

area on the northeast corner of Goldie Road and Ault Field Road.  The City appealed the 

decision; however the Growth Management Board and the Courts upheld the County’s 

decision. 

140



2 

DISCUSSION 

The City is therefore utilizing the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendment’s annual review 

process to change the UGA boundaries and reflect the County’s decision. Since the 

Future Land Use Map is part of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the process established 

in OHMC 18.15 must be followed to amend it and reflect the correction. 

Correcting the Future Land Use map in 2014 will provide a clean slate to discuss the 

2016 amendments and the next 20 year population projection that is required as part of 

the major update.  Therefore the areas that are hatched on Exhibit B are recommended for 

removal from the City’s UGA.  There are no additional areas proposed to be added at this 

time. 

Property owners of the areas that are to be removed have been notified of this amendment 

by mail.  Citizens that participated in the 2005 UGA amendment have also been notified 

of this correction.  Staff has received a few phone calls from property owners to clarify 

the amendment and those owners have not raised any specific concerns regarding the 

correction. 

The City and the County are approaching population projections and UGA amendments 

slightly differently this time.  The County and Municipalities have worked 

collaboratively in updating the 20 year projection for the 2016 Comprehensive Plan 

update.  The City and the County are also working jointly on the Buildable Lands 

Analysis for the entire County.  This collaborative work will help the City and the County 

to jointly determine if the UGA boundaries need to be amended with the 2016 update. 

Review Criteria 

OHMC 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are 

provided below. 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in 

any significant way. 

Correcting the UGA boundaries on the City’s Future Land Use Map will not 

adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in a significant way. 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

This proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map should be considered as a 

correction rather than a removal of residential capacity.  Removing these areas 

from the City’s Future Land Use Maps will make the UGA boundaries consistent 

with the County, and “consistency” is an important goal of the Growth 

Management Act and the City’s Comprehensive Plan.    

141



3 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 

countywide planning policies. 

“Consistency” is one of the prime reasons the requirements of the Countywide 

Planning Policies and the Growth Management Act.  Correcting the UGA 

boundaries on the City’s Future Land Use Map to reflect the County’s decision is 

promoting consistency between the jurisdictions’ plans and is therefore furthering 

the goals of the Growth Management Act and the County Wide Policies. 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community 

as a whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

This amendment is proposed to resolve the inconsistency that resulted from the 

County’s decision on the 2005 UGA amendments.  Correcting the Future Land 

Use Map will allow the City and the County to work forward on the 2016 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments and determine the needs and changing 

circumstances of the community.   

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA 

review and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from correcting the Future Land 

Use Map.   

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which 

were the basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth 

allocations. 

This amendment corrects the Future Land Use Map to reflect the County’s 

decision on the 2005 UGA Amendments.  The areas that were added in 2005 were 

based on a capacity analysis done by the City at that time.  However, the County 

determined that additional lands were not needed by the City to meet its 20 year 

growth projections.  Correcting the Future Land Use Map will allow the City and 

the County to work together on the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 

determine if additional capacity is needed for the next 20 year projection. 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and 

surrounding neighborhoods. 

This criterion is not applicable to this amendment and is intended for change in 

land uses. 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city 

council.  

This is not applicable for this change since it does not address a new policy 

direction. 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the 

process. 

142



4 

Not applicable. 

From the above review, it can be determined that there will not likely be any immediate 

adverse impacts from correcting the Future Land Use Map to be consistent with the 

County’s decision on the 2005 UGA Amendments. 

The 2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan for Island County and Oak Harbor will 

provide an opportunity for both jurisdictions to work together in determining the 

development capacities in the County and the City and jointly determining whether the 

UGA boundaries need to be amended.  Working cooperatively will help avoid future 

inconsistencies in the demarcation of the UGA.   

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing

 Recommend amending the Future Land Use Map to remove areas from the UGA

on the City’s Future Land Use Map to be consistent with the County’s decision on

the 2005 UGA Amendments.

143



NE 16th Avenue

Torpedo Road

Re
ga

tta
 D

riv
e

Cresent Harbor Road

SR
 20

NE Goldie Street

NE 16th Avenue

NE Easy Street

SE Maylor Street

SW Roeder  Dr ive

SW
 S

ce
ni c

 H
e ig

h ts
 S

tre
e t

SW
 Fr

eu
nd

 S
tre

et

SW Talon Loop

SW Eagle Vista Avenue

SW
 C

a p
ita

l D
riv

e

Waterloo Road

B a
ld a

 R
oa

d

SR
 2 0

NW 14th Way

C r
os

by
 R

oa
d

NW 13th Court pvt

NW 12th Court pvt

NW 12th Loop pvt

NW
 Q

ue
st 

St
ree

t

Ol
y m

pic
 D

riv
e E

as
t

Shepard Street

He
me

nw
ay

 P
lac

e

O l
ym

pic
 D

riv
e E

as
t

Olym
pi c

 D
riv

e

R idgevie w Drive

Air
lin

e W
ay

Highland Drive

Fairvue Pl

Cashmere Place

SW St
roo

ps 
Dr i

ve

SW
 R

oo
dz

an
t S

tre
et

S W
 St

ro
op

s D
riv

e

Orchard Loop

SW Th ornber ry  Dr ive

SW Putnam Drive

SW
 To

uri
st 

   S
tre

et

Hig hland Drive
Cres tv iew Place

Orchard Loop

Mont
ice

llo 
Way

Victo
ri a 

Way

Care
free

 Pla
ce

Orchard Loop

Loerland Ln

Mont
ice

l lo 
Way

Lo
erl

an
d L

n

SW 19th Court

SW Kim ball Drive

SW Glenmont Court

Ba
y m

on
t   

 D
riv

e

Oakmont Lane

Mobius Loop

Erin Park Rd.

SW Berwick  Drive SW
 B

erw
ick

 D
riv

e

S W
 C

arn
eg

ie 
St

ree
t

S W
 Ab

erd
ee

n C
ou

rt

SW
 F a

irw
a y

 P
o in

t D
ri v

e

SW
 N

ien
hu

is 
St

ree
t

SW
 M

ulb
err

y P
lac

e

SW
 S

tr e
ml

er 
Dr

ive

SW
 O

liv
e S

t re
et

SW Strem
ler Drive

SW Stremler Drive

Ridgeway Drive

Me
rid

ian
 St

ree
t

Spa rro w C irc
le

SW
 R

os
ar

io 
P la

ce

Rid
ge

w a
y D

rive

Greenwood Street

Kiwi Acres Ln

SW Harbor Vista  CircleSW Harbor   
  V iew

SW
 Vi

sta
 Pa

rk 
Dr

ive

SW 24th Avenue

SW Capital St.

SE 6th Avenue
SE 6th Avenue

SE 4th Avenue

SE 8th Avenue

SE Castle Park Ct

SE 8th Avenue

SE Glencoe Street

SE 6th Avenue

SE 5th Avenue

SE Jerome Street

SE Cabot D ri ve

SE 4th Avenue

SE 3rd Avenue

SE Ely Street

SE Fisher Street

SE 2nd Place

SE Glencoe Street

E.  Whidbey Avenue

NW

 Ensign Drive

NW
 Fa

irh
a v

en
 D

riv
e

NW 3rd Avenue

SW
 Ji

b S
tre

et

SW Judson Drive

SW
 La

ns
da

le 
St r

ee
t

SW
 Ju

ds
on

 D
riv

e

SW 4th Court

SW
 M

u z
za

ll S
tre

et SW 4th Avenue

SW
 K

irk
 La

ne

S W
 Lo pez  Dr ive

SW 6th Avenue

SW 10th Court

SW Harrier Street

Pa
int

ers
 W

ay

Scheer Ln.

SW Harrier Circle

SW Castilian Drive

SW
 In

gl e
wo

od  
La

ne

SW
 K

ing
ma

 C
ou

rt

SW
 Ju

ds
o n

 D
riv

e

SW Casti lian Drive

SW
 M

cC
ro

ha
n S

tre
et

SW
 Lo

n d
on

 Te
rr a

ce

SW Quinault Stree
t

SW 10th Avenue

SW 9th Avenue

SW 8th Avenue

SW
 O

tte
rcr

es
t S

tre
e t

SW
 P

uff
in  

St
ree

t

SW 7th Avenue

SW Regency Dr ive

S W
 Q

u il
ce

ne
 La

ne

SW Robertson Drive
SW Putnam Drive

NE 7th Avenue

N. M idwa y Blvd

SW Periwink le Lane

SW 2nd Court

SW
 Le

ch
i D

riv
e SW Lechi Drive

SW Ponsteen Drive

SW
 O

ve
rw

ay
 S

t

NW Loerland Drive
NW R

oe
de

r D
riv

e

NW Outrigger Loop

NW 2nd Avenue

NW
 O

xfo
rd 

A v
en

ue

NW Outboard Drive

NW 5th Avenue

N.
 H

ell
er

 St
re e

t

NW 5th Avenue

NW
 M izzen Drive

NW
 L a

tee
n S

tre
et

NW Longview Drive

N E
 E

rns
t S

tre
et

NE
 E

llis
 W

ay

NW
 Lo

ng
vie

w 
Dr

ive

N W
 Lo

ft o
n L

oo
p

NW
 K

ey
 S

tre
et

NW
 P

row
 St

ree
t

NW 8 th Avenue

NW 9th Place

NW Crosby Avenue

He
lle

r R
oa

d

SW Fairway Point Drive

N. Fairway Lane

Mu
llig

an
 W

ay

Wedgewood Lane

Fa
i rw

ay 
Lan

e

L inks Way

SW Ft. Nugent Avenue

SW
 Q

u in
ce

 S
tre

et SW 17th Avenue

SW Rock Rose DriveSW
 W

at e
rs i

de
 C

ou
r t

SW 17th Avenue

SW 17th Avenue

SW
 Sp

rin
gfi

eld
    

Co
urt

SW
 Ta

ho
e S

tre
et

S W
 Ul

ys s
es 

Str
ee

t

Lato Drive

No
rm

an
 D

riv
e

Fi r
esid

e Lane

Tulip  Ct

Juniper Ct

SW 16th Avenue

SW
 U

n io
n S

t ree
t

SW Xavi er Drive pvt SW
 Va

ngu
ard

 Stree
t pv

t

SW
 W

ind
sor

 St
ree

t  pv
t

SW Winchester Street pvt

SW
 Vic

tory
 Stree

t

NW
 Q

ua
rte

rba
c k

 Lo
op

SW 16th  Avenue

Independence CtPatriot Way

Colonial Way

Heritag
e Way

Crosswoods D rive

Liberty Lane

S W
 R

eg
en

cy
 D

riv
e

SW Sunnyside Ave

SW
 S i

lv e
rbe

rry
 St

r ee
t

SW
 U

pla
nd

 Co
u rt

SW Thor
nbe

rry 
Drive

SW
 Th

orn
be

rr y
 Dr

iv e

Swantown Road

S. 
He

lle
r S

tre
et

SW Kitti ta
s C

t

SR 20

SR
 20

SW Looking Glass Loop

SW 11th Court

SW 12th Ct

SW Swantown Avenue

SW
 Is

lan
de

r L
a n

e

S W 13th Avenue

SW
 K lick

itat
 Te

rra
ce

SW Ka lama Loop

SW
 Ka

lee
ton

 Lo
op

SW Barri ngton Dri ve

S W
 In

gl e
sid

e C
t

SW 14th Ct

NW
 Ke

lly
 D

r.

NW Lola Terrace

NW
 K

at h
lee

n D
riv

e

NW Redwing Drive

NW
 R

ed
w in

g D
r iv

e

NW Redwing Drive N
W

 Fa
lls

 C
ree

k L
o o

p
NW

 E b
b T

id e
 C

t

NW Columbia DriveNW
 F a

irh
av

en
 D

ri v
e

NW Hiyu Drive

Nw 7th Avenue

N W Haslo Place

NW Hiyu Dr ive

NW
 Fr

ig a
te 

St
re e

t

N W Iss
aq

ua
h S

t

NW
 E

lwh
a S

tre
et

NW Dory Drive

NW Illahee Drive

NW Hyak Drive

NW Cherry Hill Loop pvt

NW
 Al

mo
nd

 Lo
op

 pv
t

N W
 C

am
e ll

a L
oo

p p
vt

N .
 O

ak
 H

arb
or 

St
ree

t

NE Cordero Place

Robin Lane

Gun Club Road

NE Cordero Place

NE Big Berry Loop pvt

NE 10th Avenue

NW Crosby Avenue

NW Cathlamet D rive

NW
 A

nc
ho

r  D
riv

e

NW 10th Court

N W 11th Court

NW Dory D riv e

NW    C
li pp

er 
Driv

e

NW 8th Avenue

NW 7th Court

NW
 C

ath
lam

et 
Dr

ive

NW Calista Ct.

NW Columbia Drive

NE
 A

tal
an

ta  
   W

ay

N .
 O

ak
 H

ar b
or 

St
ree

t

NE 7th Avenue

Quail Lane
Ri

fl e
 R

oa
d

NE
 K

oe
tje

 S
tre

et

SR
 20

NE 7th Avenue

AlleyNE
 Ha

rve
st  D

rive

NE Faber Stree t

SR
 20

NE 4th Avenue

NE Izett Street

Alley

NE 3rd Avenue

NE Kettle Street

N. Midway Blvd

NE Melrose Drive

NE Regatta Drive

NE Sealth  PL

NE Quill Ter

S. 
O a

k H
ar

bo
r S

tr e
et

NE Sumner Drive

NE Patrick Lane

NE O
'Le

ary
 St r

eet

NE Nar rows Avenue
NE Rikse n Way

NE Ronhaar Street

NE 11th Avenue

NE Nash Ter

NE 10th Avenue

NE 9th Avenue

NE Muller Place

NE Meeter Ln

NE Netlam Ln

NE O'Leary Street

NE 8th Avenue

NE 8th Avenue

NE 7th Place

SW Ft. Nugent Avenue

SE
 A t

las
 St

r e
et

NE 7th Court

NE 6th Avenue
NE 6th Avenue

NE 5th Avenue

NE 4th Avenue

NE 5th Avenue

NE Ronhaar Street

NE 4th Avenue

NE Queets Street

NE 3rd Avenue

NE 2nd Avenue

NE Nunan Loop

NE 1st Avenue

E. Whidbey Avenue

SE 2nd Court

Maui Ave

SE Midway Blvd

SE Neil Street

SE O'Leary Street

SE Pasek Street

SE Quaker Street

SE 8th Avenue SE Pasek Street

SE Regatta Drive

SE 10th Avenue
SE Pioneer Way

SE Maylor Street

SE 9th Avenue

SE Midway Blvd

SE Jensen Street

SE Ilwaco Alley

SE Barrington Drive

SE Ha th away    S tree t

SE Ireland Street

SE Pioneer Way

SE  D ock S treet SE Fidalgo Avenue

SE  E ly S tree t

SE 11th Avenue

SE Barrington Drive

SE Bayshore DriveS E C it y Beach St re et

SE Pioneer Way

SW Beeksma Drive

SW
 Dilla

rd L
ane

S.
 B

ee
ks

ma
 D

riv
e

SW Bayshore Drive

SW
 B

arl
ow

 S
tr e

et

SW
 Er

ie 
St

ree
t

S W
 Bo

wm
e r 

Str
ee

t

SW Barrington DriveSW
 Fl

e e
t  S

tr e
et

SW Franklin Ct

SE Pioneer Way

C oral  Sea Ave

SW 10th Avenue

SW 8th Avenue

SW
 E

ch
o L

oo
p

SW 6th Avenue

SW
 D

ye
r S

tre
et

SW 6th Avenue

SW

 Erie Circ le

SW 4th Avenue

SW 3rd Avenue

SW 3rd Avenue

SW 2nd Avenue
SW 2nd Avenue

SW
 Fe

s ti
va

l C
t

SW
 C

ru
ise

 S
tre

et

SW
 E

sto
n C

t

SW
 D

isc
ov

er y
 St

re
et NW

 B
os

un
 S

tre
et

W. Whidbey Avenue

NW
 C

a p
ta i

n C
ou

rt

NW
 D

elt
a C

ou
rt

NW 1st Avenue

SW 1st Avenue

NW 2nd Avenue

NW Kitsap Terrace

N.
 H

ell
er 

St
ree

t

NW Lanyard Loop

W. Whidbey Avenue

Gr
en

tje
's 

L n
S W

 S
ce

nic
 H

eig
h ts

 St
ree

t

SW 6th Avenue

SW
 E

r ie
 S

tre
e t

Rig
gin

g S
tre

et

NW
 E

ns
ign

 D
riv

e

O a
k H

ar b
or  

R o
ad

Rebecca Lane

Summit Blvd.

Ault Field Road

Yvonne Lane

Linda Lane

Arwin Dr.

Oak Street

Go
ldi

e R
oa

d

Cat ali na Dr .

W.  Tulagi Ave.

W. Pioneer Way

To
rpe

do
 Rd

.

Industrial Ave

Co
lin

 La
ne

Technical Drive

Gun Club Road

NE Taftson St.

SW
 N

av
iga

tor
 Lo

op

SW
 Fa

irh
av

en
 D

r

N W
 S

ce
nic

 Vi
sta

 S
t.

NW
 U

ps
ala

 D
r

NW Upsala Dr

NW 9th
 Ave

SW 3rd Avenue

W. Coral Sea Ave.

E. Coral Sea Ave.

Blue Lake Ave.

E. Coral Sea Ave.

Mountain Cir.

Rainer Cir.

Glacier Ct.

Cascade Cir.

Vista WayVista Way

Baker Ct.

Stua
rt L

n.
Adam

s C
ir.

Mt. Hood Way

Olympic Ct.

ELEM ENTARY
BRO ADVIEW

SCHO OL

OAK HARBOR

MIDDLE SCHO OL

MIDDLE SCHO OL

NORTH WHIDBEY

ELEM ENTARY
HILLC REST

SCHO OL

OAK HARBOR

HIG H SCHO OL

ELEM ENTARY

SCHO OL

OAK HARBOR

SCHO OL DIST RICT
OAK HARBOR

NO.  201

SCHO OL

OLYM PIC  V IEW

ELEM ENTARY

DISTRICT

OFF ICES

COLLEGE
SKAGIT VALLEY

ELEM ENTARY
CLOVER VAL LEY

SCHO OL

M E A D O W SW E S T 

C R O S B Y

C O M M O N S

P L A
 C E

I S L A
 N D

H I L L S

T H
 E 

H E I  G
 H T S

DIV. 3

R I D G E H A V E N

S U N S E T

S P R I N G T R E E

DIV. 3

W H I D B E Y  G R E E N

W 
H 

I D
 B 

E Y
  L 

I N
 K 

S

DIV. 4

DIV. 6

H I G H L A N D 
F T.  N

 U G E N T 

E A
 S 

T  
P A

 R 
K

W E S T R I D G E

F A I  R W A Y

DIV. 5

F I  R
  E  S  I  D

  E

DIV. 1

S W A N T O W N  R I D G E

S W A N T O W N  R I D G E

COUNTRY CLUB

DIV. 2

WHIDBEY GOLF & 

DIV. 6

E S T A T E S

F I R
 E S I D

 E

F I R
 E S I D

 E

F I  R  E  S  I  D  E

F I  R  E  S  I  D  E

DIV. 2

DIV. 3

A M
 B

 E
 R

 D
 A 

L E

D I V.
 1

D I V. 2

S H
 A 

N 
N 

O 
N 

  F
 O

 R
 E

 S 
T

DI
V. 

4

DIV. 2
DIV. 7

DIV. 4

DIV. 5

M E A D O W R I D G E

DIV. 5

C E D A R

DIV. 4

G L E
 N 

D I V. 3

M E A D O W

P A R K 

H A R B O R 

A D D I T I  O NA D D I T I  O N

G A R D E N S 

WESTSIDE

E L Y ' S

ELY'S
REPLAT

E A G L E

C R E S T 

E S T A
 T E S 

H A R B O R 

V I S
 T A 

V I
 S

 T 
A 

S C
 E

 N
 I C

 

DRIFTWOOD

ADDITION

D I L L A R D'S

C A S C A D E

V I L
 L A

 G E

E A S T V I E
 W

E S T A
 T E S

C  A  R  L  T  O  N
H  E  I  G  H  T  S

S O U T H W O O D

D I V. 3

DIV. 2
DIV. 1

E N
 T 

E 
R 

P R
 I S

 E

AD
DI

TIO
N

AD
DI

TIO
N

B R O A D V I  E W  A D D I T I O N

2ND  A D D.  P A T TO N' S

F  I R S T   A D D I T I O N

P  A  T T O N' S  

WOODLAWN
PATTON'S 

ESTATES

V A L LE  Y   

B O W E R S

V I  E W

S H A D Y

SM
ITH

'S 
 AD

D.

RO
GE

R'
S

H A R B O R

O A K

AD
DI

TIO
N

O A K S
S  E  C  O  N  D

B  E  E  K  S  M  A ' S

A D D I T I  O N
F  I  R  S  T  

B  E  E  K  S  M  A ' S

A D D I T I  O N

O A K G R O V E

P A
 R  K L A

 N  D

A D D I T I  O N

G R E E N W O O D

A D D I T I  O N

DIV. 7

S  H  A  D  O  W

S P R I N G  H I  L L

D I V. 2

N O R T H

M A H L E R S
P E A S E ' SP E A S E ' S

H E R I  T A G E 

M A H L E R S

F A
 K

 K 
E 

M 
A '

 S
 

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

D O W N I N G

F I
 R

 S
 T 

 A 
D 

D 
.

P A S E K' S

F I R S T   ADD.

H A V E N

QUIET WOODS

SPRINGTIME

G L E N N

DIV. 2

DIV. 1

DIV. 8

Y O R K-

E L L M O R E A D D I  T I O N

DIV. 1T O W N 

H A W T H O R N E

D I V. 1

DIV. 1

DIV. 3

W 
I C

 H
 E

 R
 ' S

F  
I  R

  D
  A

  L
  E

DIV. 2

DIV. 3

DIV. 3

P L A C E

R E D W I N G 

T A R Y N C H E R R Y   H
 I L 

L   P
 R D

S P R I N G  H O L L O W

K O
 E

 T 
J E

P A
 T T

 O N S

A D
 D

 I T
 I O

 N
P A

 S T
 U R E

O L Y M P I  C
O L Y M P I  C 

G A R D E N S 

2n
d

RE
PL

AT
 O

F

K O
 E

 T 
J E

O L Y M P I  C 

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

K O
 E

 T 
J E

A D
 D

 I T
 I O

 N2n
d

A D D I T I  O N

T E R R A C E

A D D I T I  O N

R U D D I C K

E V
 E 

R 
G 

R 
E 

E 
N

E V E R G R E E N

S C E N I C 

T E R P S T R A' S

FIRST ADDITION TO

H A R B O R  

V I E W

H I L L 

C 
O 

L O
 N

 I  A
 L 

C 
O 

U 
R 

T

BERQUAM'S

A U D R E Y      H O M E S

KOETJES

FOURTH

DIV. 1

K O
 E

 J 
T E

 S

E A S T H I L L

F O R E S T

U P L A N D S

T I M B E R L A N E

DIV. 1

R I
 D G E W

 O O D
DIV. 

2

T H I R D  

K O E T J E' S    

DIV. 2

DIV. 
1

PARKSIDE

LYNNWOOD

DIV. 2 DIV. 1

W E S T

DIV. 7

DIV. 7

DIV. 3

DIV. 4DIV. 5

DIV. 6

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

C R E S T 

A D D I T I  O N

A D D I T I  O N

P A C I F I C
 

O L Y M P I  C 

ELY'S ADDITION

P  A  S T U R E  
A D D. 

G A R D E N S 

D I V.  2 

V I E W 

DI
V. 

2

DI
V. 

3

DI
V. 

1

DIV. 1

P I P E R
H E I  G H T S

K I M B A L L
T R E E

K I M
 B A L L

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

DIV. 4

DIV. 3

H E I  G
 H T S

CA
SC

AD
E 

VI
EW

F I R S T 

KO
ET

JE
'S

DIV. 1DIV. 2

DIV. 3

D I V. 2

DIV. 2

D I V. 1

H  E  I  G  H  T  S

D I V. 1

C  A  R  L  T  O  N

DIV. 4

BEACH

DIV. 2

DIV. 2

D I V. 1

D I V. 4

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

F R E U N D

F L O W E R S 
H E I  G H T S 

H E A T H E R W O O D S

DIV. 2

H E I  G H T S P L A C E 

G O L D I E   R O A D   A C R E S 

R 
E P

 L 
A T

K O
 E

 T 
J E

K O
 E

 T 
J E

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

K O
 E

 T 
J E

R 
E P

 L 
A T

A D D I T I  O N

M O S H I E R' S 
C A S C A D E 

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

DIV. 2

A D D I T I  O NV I S T A 

G L E N

A D D I T I  O N
F I R S T

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

DIV. 1

P A
 R K   P

 R D
W O O D B U R Y   

DIV. 4

DIV. 3

DIV. 5

DIV. 1
D A W N C R E S T

DIV. 2

I N D I A N 

C R O S S W O O D S 

R I D G E

DIV. 2

DIV. 1

W H I D
 B E Y  C O U N T R Y 

DIV. 3

DIV. 1

DIV. 3

C L U
 B  E S T A T E S 

W H I D B E Y  C O U N T R Y 

C L U B  E S T A T E S 

A C R E S 

P A  T T O N' S   H I L L  C R E  S  T  V  I L L A G E  

DIV. 4

DIV. 1

A C R E S 

W A T E R L O O 

DIV. 1

W A T E R L O O 

DIV. 2

H I G H L A N D

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

T R A C E 

A C R E S
W O O D R I D G E

S U M M E R 

W I N D 

P L A C EH  A R B O R 

Future Water Tank

P O I N
 T   P

 R D
F A I  R

 W A Y

R 
O 

S 
E  

H 
I L

 L 
 P

 R
 D

H 
E I

 G
 H

 T 
S

B A
 R

 R
 I N

 G
 T 

O 
N

DI
V. 

1

DI
V. 

2

DIV. 1

DIV. 3

DIV. 2

DIV. 4

P A
 R 

K  
P R

 D

H I
 G 

H L
 A 

N D

F R O S T A DP O N D

G L E N

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

DIV. 4

DIV. 6

H I L L C R E S T 
V I L L A G E 

DIV. 1

P A T T O N' S 
H I L L C R E S T 
V I L L A G E 

DIV. 2

P A T T O N' S 

H I G H L A N D S   W E S T

DIV. 1

P A T T O N' S 
H I L L C R E S T 

V I L L A G E 
DIV. 4

C  A S T I L I A N  H I L L S 

DIV. 5

G A R D E N S 

K O
 E

 T 
J E

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

W E S T S I  D EA D D I T I  O N

DIV. 5

DIV. 1

CONSTANCE

COURT

HAR
BO R V IEW

MO BIL
E  HOME PA

RK

PARKWOO D M ANOR

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

TOW N &  COUNT RY TOW N &  COUNT RY 
MO BILE  HOM E PARK

CONDO MINIUM
SCENIC VIEW

SCENIC

TOW NHOM ESTERRACE

STATIONHARBO R

WATERSIDE
CONDOS

WHIDBEY C OTTAG ES

OAK HO LLOW  M OBILE  HO ME PARK

NAS WHIDBEY 
SEAPLANE BASE

MAYLOR POINT

NAS WHIDBEY 
AULT FIELD

ALDERBROOK

CONDOS

BRANCA'S 1ST

OLD

HARBOR PARK

OAK HARBOR

CIV IC

CENT ER

MARINA

OAK HARBOR

CITY
SHOP

HAR
BO R V IEW

MO BIL
E  HOME PA

RK

HALL
CITY

POLICE

PARKWOO D M ANOR

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

TOW N &  COUNT RY TOW N &  COUNT RY 
MO BILE  HOM E PARK

DEPART MENT

Cit
y O

wn
ed

 W
etl

an
ds

Bare Land

CONDO MINIUM
SCENIC VIEW

SCENIC

TOW NHOM ESTERRACE

STATIONHARBO R

WATERSIDE
CONDOS

Landfill

Re
cy

le 

Public Work Shops

Tra
ns

fer

WHIDBEY C OTTAG ES

OAK HO LLOW  M OBILE  HO ME PARK

Neil Tower Museum

MAYLOR POINT

SKATEBOARD 

SPORTS

FIELD

SWIMM ING

PARK
POOL

GOLF COURSE

YACHT CLUB

FIRESIDE
PARK

PAR K

PAR K

WALK WAY
PAR K

WALK WAY PAR K

PAR
K

RUTH COHEN
PARK

PARK
KIMBALL

SPRING TREE
PARK

PA
R

K

PARK

WOODBURY
PARK

Pocket Park

Koetje Park

RIDGEWOOD PARK

PARK
CI TY

LUECK PARK RIDGEHAVEN 

PARK

WINDJAMMER

PARK

BEEKSMA PARK PARK

RAMALEY PARK

Pocket Park

PAR K
CITY

SUMNER PARK

MEADOWRIDGE
PARK

TYHUIS
PARK

PARK
SHADO W GLEN

PARK
REDW ING

VO LUNTEER PARK

PARK
GARDENS
HOLLAND

NEIL PARK &
HOLLAND GARDENS

SMIT H PARK

VETERAN'S PARK

FORT NUGENT PARK
FREUND

MARSH

Off-Leash

Regional
Ball Fields

Dog Park

FLINTSTONE PARK

PARK
CI TY

PARK

RE
GA

TT
A 

DR
.

WA
KE

 AV
E.

EA
ST

 PI
ONE

ER
 W

AY
TO

RPEDO ROAD

CLOV ER ST.

HERON ST.

GUAM AVE.

FIELD ST.

HEATHE R ST.
REED ST.

MEADOW DR.

RO
BIN

  S
T.

JAY ST.

BRIAR CIR.

RAVEN DR.

WAK E LANE

GROUS E LN.

WOODPECKER LN.

BRANT ST.

LARK ST.

GOLDFINCH S T.

CARDINAL

THRUSH LN.

WHIDB EY AVE.

OS PRE Y S T.

SWA N DR.

ORIOLE ST.

CANARY  S T.

SANDSTONE  DR.

AGATE CT.

GE MSTONE  DR.

SLATE DR.

QUARTZ DR.

WA
KE

 AV
E.

EAGLE  LOOP

OP Q-ORIOLE ST.

ROCKHILL
TERRACE

SARATOGA
HEIGHTS

LN.

EAST PIONEER WAY

City of  Oak Harbor
Future Land Use Map Designation Map

Adopted December 2012

Scale:  1"= 2,000'

0 930 1,860465 Feet

Disclaimer:
Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy,  eliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping
products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person
or entity who relies on any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

*Note - The Urban Growth Area (UGA) depicted on this map reflects the City of Oak Harbor’s growth boundary as adopted by City Council in 2005.  This boundary was updated in 2005
during the Comprehensive Plan review process and was amended to meet projected growth through 2025 as mandated by the Growth Management Act.  Island County has not adopted the
City of Oak Harbor’s UGA and maintains a different UGA boundary as shown on this map.

NAS Whidbey Accident Potential Zones

City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary*
(City of Oak Harbor Adopted)

NAS Noise Subdistricts
Federal

Urban Growth Boundary*
(Island County Adopted) Subdistrict 1

Subdistrict 2
Subdistrict 3

Central Business District
Enterprise Area

Accident Potential 
Subdistrict I

Accident 
Potential  

Subdistrict III

Accident Potential 
Subdistrict II

Noise Subdistrict C ( > 75 Ldn)

Noise Subdistrict B (65 Ldn - 75 Ldn)

Noise Subdistrict A (60 Ldn - 65 Ldn)

WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP CONSTITUTES THE
OFFICIAL LAND USE MAP AS APPROVED BY ORDINANCE #     
OF THE OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL. 
DATED THIS                           DAY OF                         2012.

BY                                                ATTEST
                      MAYOR                                        CITY CLERK 

Open Space 
Overlay Incentives

Medium-High Density Residential
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Residential Office
Neighborhood Commercial
Central Business District
Community Commercial
Auto/Industrial Commercial
Highway Corridor Commercial

Planned Industrial Park
Planned Business Park
Industrial
Public Facilities
Residential Estate
Special Planning Area
Outside UGA

FUTURE LAND USE

Maritime

PC EXHIBIT A

144



N
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.
CROSBY  RD.

NW CROSBY AVE.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NE  7TH  AVE.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SE  BARRINGTON  DR.

SE  8TH  AVE.

S
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SW  6TH  AVE.
SW

 SW
ANTOW

N  AVE.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

. S
W

  R
O

S
A

R
IO

  P
L

. S
C

E
N

IC

NE  16TH  AVE.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

STATE ROUTE 20

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

NE  16TH  AVE.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

TO
R

P
E

D
O

 D
R

.

SE  8TH  AVE.

SW B
A

R
R

DR.

IN
GTON

CRESCENT  HARBOR  RD.

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

H
E

IG
H

T
S

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

S
T

.

S
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

SW FORT NUGENT  AVE.

RD.

S
W

DR.

SE BAYSHORE

BAYSHORE  DR.

SE

PIONEER
E.

PIONEER

WAY

E.
WAY

SW LOERLAND DR.

N
E

G
O

LD
IE ST.

N
. O

A
K

H
A

R
B

O
R

S
T

.
N

. O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  S

T
.

SW
ANTOW

N  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.

W. WATERLOO RD.

AREAS (A,B,C, & D) TO BE

REMOVED FROM THIS CITY'S UGA

A

B

C

D

30000 1000 2000

Legend
 Navy Land
 City Limits
 UGA-City Adopted

County Approved

UGA Expansion

CITYOF

PC Exhibit B

145



Planning Commission
August 26, 2014

Page 1 of 2

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
August 26, 2014 

ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger and
Ana Schlecht
Absent: Kristi Jensen 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers

Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO APPROVE THE JULY 22, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Angie Homola (2362 Happy Lane) thanked the Planning Commission for their hard work and
spoke about the importance of working closely with other jurisdictions on long range planning
and about conservation futures funds available through the County to help secure land.

2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT –  AMENDMENT/CORRECTION TO THE 
URBAN GROWTH AREAS (UGA) – Public Hearing
Mr. Powers reported that the Planning Commission was introduced to this topic at the July 22,
2014 meeting.  This Comprehensive Plan amendment is a correction to the City’s Future Land 
Use Map which will remove areas that were added in 2005.

Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing at 7:37 p.m.

Al Williams (1875 Ft. Nugent Rd.) spoke in favor of the amendment.

Debbie Lagasse (1975 Meridian St.) asked when the West Ridge area might be absorbed into
the City and what the timeline would be.

Angie Homola (2362 Happy Lane) noted that she was also speaking on behalf of the Swan
Lake Preservation Group and spoke in favor of the amendment.

Hap Fakkema (2427 Moss Lane) spoke on behalf of Beach View Farms and asked the
Planning Commission to look again at what Beach View Farms offered during the 2005/2007
Comprehensive Plan cycle as it offers endless potential uses for the City.

The public hearing was closed at 7:45 p.m.

Mr. Powers spoke to Ms. Lagasse’s question stating that the amendment before the Planning 
Commission tonight doesn’t do anything that would affect Ms. Lagasse’s property.  Mr. Powers
noted that her property was already in the UGA and at some point the area could be annexed
into the City but the City does not initiate the annexation, the property owners would have to
initiate the annexation request.

Planning Commission Discussion
Mr. Freeman commented on the importance of the map reflecting correct information.

ATTACHMENT 2

146

gifford
Highlight



Planning Commission
August 26, 2014

Page 2 of 2

ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE AMEMDMENTS TO 
THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE COUNTY’S 
DECISION ON THE 2005 UGA AMENDMENTS. 

2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers summarized the project background, Comprehensive Plan amendment review
criteria and presented proposed language amendments to Comprehensive Plan Goal 5 titled
“Protect viewsheds and view corridors.”

The public hearing was opened at 8:54 p.m.

Angie Homola (2362 Happy Lane) spoke in favor of the amendment and asked the Planning
Commission to include additional areas as described and photographed in materials she
provided for the record (PC Attachment 1).

The public hearing was closed at 7:56 p.m.

Planning Commission Discussion
Planning Commission asked staff about the process for adding additional view corridors in the
future and noted their wish not to infringe on private property rights with additional regulations.

ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. SCHLECHT SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE AMENDING 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GOAL 5 OF THE URBAN DESIGN ELEMENT WITH 
LANGUAGE AS PROPOSED IN EXIBIT A OF THE STAFF REPORT. 

ADJOURN: 8:02 p.m. 

Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford

ATTACHMENT 2

147



CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS 

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this memo is to propose an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan to add 

language that identifies view corridors in Oak Harbor that is worth preserving.  Protecting scenic 

views is incorporated into several goals and policies, and this amendment will include a few 

view corridors that have been identified through a study that was initiated in 2012.   

BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission chose to add the Scenic View study to the Comprehensive Plan 

Docket in 2012.  The study was categorized as “Discretionary” in accordance with the priority 

system established in OHMC 18.50.050.  The study was initiated with a public outreach effort 

that solicited photos from citizens on scenic views within Oak Harbor.  A wide variety of photos 

were received from the public.   

Prior to reviewing the numerous scenic views initially identified through the public input 

process, the Planning Commission discussed a set of review criteria to use in evaluating the 

scenic views.  The criteria were established based on various factors such as the viewpoints’ 

location on private or public property, the significance of a scenic landmark (Oak Harbor Bay, 

Mt. Baker etc.) and its visibility from public streets, parks and trails.  The Planning Commission 

also weighted the criteria since some factors warranted more importance than others.   

Based on the public outreach and staff survey, a list of 27 views was compiled for the Planning 

Commission’s consideration.  The views were discussed with the Planning Commission and each 

view was rated against the pre-established criteria.  The criteria based evaluation narrowed the 

scenic views of interest to 9 potential views.  The Planning Commission reviewed the nine 

potential views and narrowed it down further 4 views after considering impacts on private 

property. 

DISCUSSION 

The final list of views that were identified for protection is listed below. 

1. Northbound on SR 20 between SW Scenic Heights Street and SW Erie Street

2. Southbound on SR 20 between NE 16
th

 Ave and Midway Blvd

3. SE Regatta Drive between SE 8
th

 Street and SE 10
th

 Street

4. Waterfront Trail from Windjammer Park to the Oak Harbor Marina

1. Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights Street to Erie Street.  This is an entryway view into the

community for the north bound traffic on SR 20.  The highway drops down in elevation from

148



2 

the Swantown Avenue intersection and curves around the intersection on Scenic Heights as 

the view of Mt. Baker appears beyond the city landscape. 

2. Southbound SR 20 at NE 16
th

 Avenue – This is an entryway view into Oak Harbor for the

south bound traffic.  The snowcapped Olympic Mountains are visible as one approaches the

NE 16
th

 Avenue intersection on the highway.

3. Regatta Drive – SE 8
th

 Avenue to SE Pioneer Way – This is another entryway view into

the community for people entering via Regatta Drive.  The views of the marina and the

water start to appear to the southbound traffic after SE 8
th

 Avenue.  The elevation drops

down from there so the views are above the buildings.  The corridor view along the street

remains while the view across properties starts to diminish close to SE 10
th

 Avenue.

149



3 

4. Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park to Oak Harbor Marina.  The trail runs along the

shoreline providing open views of the water and the mountains.  There are some

structures such as windbreakers that can potentially be removed to improve the view.

Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park 

150



4 

Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park 

Waterfront Trail – Bayshore Drive 

Waterfront Trail – Pioneer Way 

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment Language 

The proposed amendment is to add language to the Urban Design Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan, specifically Goal 5.   The amendment will include language to identify the above 

mentioned four views.  The amendment will also include language to define a “view corridor” 

since the existing language only defines “viewsheds”.  The Comprehensive Plan currently 

defines “viewsheds" as a view from a single location.  Since the views identified for this 

amendment are along a street or a trail that can be categorized as a “corridor”, the amendment 

proposes to include a definition for it. The proposed amendment to Goal 5 of the Urban Design 

Element is provided in Exhibit A.  

151



5 

Review Criteria 

OHMC 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the Comprehensive 

Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are provided below. 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 

The amendment to add specific scenic view corridors to the Comprehensive Plan may not 

have a direct relation to the public health, safety and welfare but it will contribute 

towards sustaining a quality of life that improves the public health, safety and welfare of 

the community.  These views when protected will provide a lasting quality that will 

attract new residents to Oak Harbor and therefore sustain the well-being of the town and 

increase the desire to live in this community.  

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

There are several goals in the Comprehensive Plan that identify the importance of 

protecting scenic views.  Some of them are listed below along with their relevance to 

protecting scenic views.  There can be competing goals and policies within the 

Comprehensive Plan when attempting to protect scenic views.  This is because views can 

be categorized into two kinds.  One is views from the community (Oak Harbor Bay, The 

Cascades, The Olympic Mountains etc.) and the other as views within the community 

such as landscaping, natural areas, street trees, etc.  Oak Harbor’s landscape ordinance is 

a direct implementation of some of the goal and policies to buffer adjacent land uses as 

well as beautify the community.  Setbacks, design guidelines, buffering, retention of 

natural areas, parking lot landscaping etc. are a few of the zoning requirements that 

enhance the views and experience within the community.  Ironically, sometimes these are 

some of the reasons that scenic views from Oak Harbor are blocked or compromised.  In 

determining methods to protect scenic views from Oak Harbor, there needs to be a 

balance between protecting community interests and imposing restrictions on land 

owners.   

Below is a list of goals and policies that are related to scenic views.  Some of these are 

identified with (+) and (-) to indicate their relevance to protecting scenic views from the 

community. 

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies Relevance to Scenic Views and measures to 

protect them 

Land Use Element 

Goal 2 - To retain the character and 

visual identity of the Oak Harbor 

area. 

This goal in the Comprehensive Plan 

identifies various policies that the public 

believes will help to retain the 

community’s character and identity.  

2.a Encourage planned

residential development (PRDs) 

with performance based 

standards. 

PRDs can be used as a form of 

development to increase densities in certain 

areas of the site and reduce it in other areas 

to protect viewsheds. 

2.b Consider view corridors (+) This policy identifies that views from 

152



6 

when planning for development. Oak Harbor are an essential characteristic 

to protecting the visual identity of Oak 

Harbor. 

2.c Draft and implement a

landscape ordinance for inclusion 

with development regulations. 

This policy places the importance of 

having good views within Oak Harbor by 

including landscaping in the City’s 

development regulations.  Most 

developments in Oak Harbor that have 

landscaping islands in parking lots and on 

the perimeter of their property are directly 

related to the implementation of this policy.  

(-) Measures to reduce landscaping on the 

perimeter of lots to protect scenic views 

from Oak Harbor would be, in sorts, 

against this policy. 
Goal 4 - To preserve community 

character through quality design. 

4.a Encourage city

beautification through design and 

quality standards for landscaping 

of both public facilities and 

private development. 

This policy addresses the visual interest 

created within the community by including 

landscaping for both public and private 

development 

4.c Require all public facilities

constructed by public agencies to 

be appropriately landscaped and 

designed. 

The policy requires public facilities such as 

parks, open spaces, recreational areas, 

streets, public buildings etc. to be 

landscaped.  Landscaping is one of those 

polices that is repeated several times within 

the Comprehensive Plan as a way to further 

various goals of the community.  

4.d Identify, preserve and

enhance desired views of water, 

mountains or other unique 

landmarks or landscape features.  

Such views should be regarded as 

important and valuable civic 

assets. 

(+) This policy directly addresses the 

preservation of views, and their importance 

and value to the community. 

Urban Design Element 

Goal 5 -  Protect viewsheds and view 

corridors. 

Discussion: The City of Oak Harbor 

defines viewsheds as a panoramic view 

from a single location.  Significant 

viewsheds include views of Mt. Baker, Mt. 

Rainier, Cascade mountain range, Olympic 

mountain range, Oak Harbor Bay, Maylor 

Point (especially wooded and tidal flat 

(+) This goal directly addresses the 

importance of view corridors from Oak 

Harbor by identifying some major points of 

interest that can be viewed from Oak 

Harbor.  This goal also provides a link 

between view corridors and a desire to 

protect them by appropriately guiding 

development. 

153



7 

areas) and Saratoga Passage.  The view 

corridors and viewsheds within the City 

should be identified and accurately mapped 

at a useable scale so they can appropriately 

guide development. 

5.a Consideration of building

impacts on viewsheds and view 

corridors shall be exercised in all 

developments, and mitigation 

measures shall be applied to 

protect existing views. 

Discussion: The City may 

incorporate policies and guidelines to 

protect these resources, such as 

developing: a unified bulk program 

for building envelopes; performance 

based zoning; and, density bonuses 

as development incentives. 

(+)  This policy provides some direction on 

ways to protect scenic corridors.  This 

policy also recognizes that the blocking 

scenic view is a impact and calls for the 

application of “mitigation” measures to 

protect the larger interest of preserving 

community character and visual identity.  

5.b Landscape buffers shall be

required along major arterials, 

retaining existing vegetation 

where possible. 

(-) This policy addresses views within Oak 

Harbor and its enhancement through 

landscaping.  However, measures to protect 

viewsheds from Oak Harbor of the 

mountains and water by minimizing 

landscaping or eliminating them may 

contradict with this policy. 

5.c Free standing business signs

should be consistent with the 

speed limit of roadways, and the 

character of land use districts. 

This is not directly applicable to protecting 

views but suggests that signs can be 

regulated to serve specific roadways and 

land use districts. 

5.d Developments along Oak

Harbor's waterfront should 

enhance the area's natural and 

physical aesthetics. 

This policy again indicates the importance 

to the community on natural areas and 

physical aesthetics. 

5.e Scenic transportation routes

should be identified.  Adjacent 

properties owners will be 

encouraged to protect scenic 

values. 

(+)  This policy directly encourages 

property owners adjacent to scenic 

viewsheds and corridors to protect them. 

5.f The City and the Navy

should cooperate on the 

protection of viewsheds and view 

corridors. 

The policy indicates the importance of 

protecting scenic views at the inter-

governmental level. 

Parks and Recreation Element 

Open Space 

k. Identify and protect

important “view corridors”

This policy suggests identifying the “view 

corridors” and then protecting them. 

154



8 

that provide visual access to 

scenic vistas. 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the countywide 

planning policies. 

The proposed change to include scenic view corridors in the Comprehensive Plan does 

not create any inconsistencies with the Growth Management Act or the County Wide 

Policies. 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 

whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

Identifying and protecting scenic views within the community was initiated by the 

community during the Comprehensive Plan Docket process and approved by the City 

Council.  Therefore this can be viewed as addressing a need within the community. 

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA review 

and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from adding language in the 

Comprehensive Plan to identify the scenic corridors within Oak Harbor.  However, some 

of the view corridors that are identified for protection may involve working with a private 

owner during the design of a development.  Any impacts to the environment for 

protecting these views can be mitigated with the development of property.  

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 

basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 

The proposed language to identify and protect scenic views will not impact growth 

projections and is not applicable to this amendment 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

Identifying and protecting scenic view corridors will not create incompatibilities in land 

uses or the surrounding neighborhoods.  Any impacts during site development can be 

mitigated at the time of development review. 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council. 

The City Council’s approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment docket every year 

provides the policy direction necessary to do studies such as this.  Identifying and 

protecting scenic views from Oak Harbor is not a new policy direction since there are 

several goals and policies currently in the Comprehensive Plan to address it.  This 

amendment identifies key locations within the City for consideration. 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the process. 

The Planning Commission identified specific criteria to review the scenic views.  The 

criteria are listed below along with the importance of each criterion.  Each criterion was 

given a rating scale provided at the bottom of the table below.  All the scenic views 

155



9 

identified through the study have been reviewed against these criteria.  

Proposed Criteria Rating Scale* 

View from public property H 

View from streets 

SR 20 M 

Arterial M 

Collector L 

Local L 

View from a pedestrian route H 

View of a specific landmark H 

The need to buy property D1 

The need for special zoning regulations D 

Entry way views H 

Waterfront connectivity H 

Total 

*Rating Scale: H= High(100 points), M=Medium(50 points), L=Low(25 points), D1=Deduct (-100
points) and D = Deduct (-50 points) 

From the above review, it can be determined that the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan will further several goals within the Plan and will likely not create adverse impacts to the 

community.   

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing

 Recommend amending the Comprehensive Plan, specifically Goal 5 of the Urban Design

Element with language as proposed in Exhibit A.

156



10 

Exhibit A 

Goal 5 - Protect viewsheds and view corridors. 

Discussion 

The City of Oak Harbor defines viewsheds as a panoramic view from a 

single location.  Significant viewsheds include views of Mt. Baker, Mt. 

Rainier, Cascade mountain range, Olympic mountain range, Oak Harbor 

Bay, Maylor Point (especially wooded and tidal flat areas) and Saratoga 

Passage.  View corridors are defined as views of landmarks or landscapes 

that are visible along a traveled path such as a public street or trail such as 

SR 20, SE Pioneer Way and the waterfront trail.  The view corridors and 

viewsheds within the City should be identified and accurately mapped at a 

useable scale so they can appropriately guide development. 

The City conducted a scenic view study in 2014 and determined that the 

following view corridors are important to protect. 

 Northbound on SR 20 between SW Scenic Heights Street

and SW Erie Street

 Southbound on SR 20 between NE 16
th

 Ave and Midway

Blvd

 SE Regatta Drive between SE 8
th

 Street and SE 10
th

 Street

 Waterfront Trail from Windjammer Park to the Oak Harbor

Marina

The protection of the scenic views identified above should be done in 

coordination with adjacent property owners at the time of development 

using the policies listed below in conjunction with the application of 

existing design guidelines and administrative design flexibility.   

Policy:  5.a Consideration of building impacts on 

viewsheds and view corridors shall be exercised in all 

development, and mitigation measures shall be applied to protect 

existing views. 

Discussion 

The City may incorporate policies and guidelines to protect these 

resources, such as developing: a unified bulk program for building 

envelopes; performance based zoning; and, density bonuses as 

development incentives. 

5.b Landscape buffers shall be required along major arterials, 

retaining existing vegetation where possible. 

157



11 

5.c Free standing business signs should be consistent with the 

speed limit of roadways, and the character of land use 

districts. 

5.d Development along Oak Harbor's waterfront should 

enhance the area's natural and physical aesthetics. 

5.e Scenic transportation routes should be identified.  Adjacent 

properties owners will be encouraged to protect scenic 

values. 

5.f The City and the Navy should cooperate on the protection 

of viewsheds and view corridors. 

158



Planning Commission
August 26, 2014

Page 2 of 2

ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE AMEMDMENTS TO 
THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE COUNTY’S 
DECISION ON THE 2005 UGA AMENDMENTS. 

2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers summarized the project background, Comprehensive Plan amendment review
criteria and presented proposed language amendments to Comprehensive Plan Goal 5 titled
“Protect viewsheds and view corridors.”

The public hearing was opened at 8:54 p.m.

Angie Homola (2362 Happy Lane) spoke in favor of the amendment and asked the Planning
Commission to include additional areas as described and photographed in materials she
provided for the record (PC Attachment 1).

The public hearing was closed at 7:56 p.m.

Planning Commission Discussion
Planning Commission asked staff about the process for adding additional view corridors in the
future and noted their wish not to infringe on private property rights with additional regulations.

ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. SCHLECHT SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 
TO RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE AMENDING 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GOAL 5 OF THE URBAN DESIGN ELEMENT WITH 
LANGUAGE AS PROPOSED IN EXIBIT A OF THE STAFF REPORT. 

ADJOURN: 8:02 p.m. 

Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford

ATTACHMENT 3

159

gifford
Highlight



PC ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 3

160



PC ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 3

161



PC ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 3

162



PC ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 3

163



Ordinance to amend Comp Plan 2014.doc 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 1703 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 18.10.010, 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, ADOPTING A REVISED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR AND AMENDING SECTION 18.10.011, FUTURE LAND USE 

MAP, ADOPTING A REVISED FUTURE LAND USE MAP  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor first adopted a Comprehensive Plan consistent with the 

requirements of the Washington State Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW) in 1995 

by Ordinance 1027, and adopted amendments to the plan in 1997 by Ordinance 1100, in 1998 by 

Ordinance 1161, in 2000 by Ordinance 1215, in 2001 by Ordinance 1287, in 2003 by Ordinance 

1340, in 2004 by Ordinance 1396, in 2005 by Ordinance 1439 and in 2007 by Ordinance 1488 

and in 2008 by Ordinance 1542; and in 2009 by Ordinance 1564; and 2010 by Ordinance 1594; 

and 2012 by Ordinance 1647; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor, in the public interest, may adopt amendments as revisions 

to the Comprehensive Plan no more frequently than once per year in accordance with the State of 

Washington Growth Management Act RCW 36.70A.130(2); and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor initiated the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments in 

October 2013 with a call for applications to the public; and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary docket for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments was 

compiled and noticed to the public, and the review of which included public hearings held by the 

Planning Commission and City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after holding a public hearing, approved a final docket for the 

2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 18, 2014; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor initiated the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments in 

March 2014 that included consideration of a land use designation amendment, 

amending/correcting the UGA boundary, continued study of a study of scenic views and an 

update to the Capital Improvements Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public meetings in May, June, July, August and 

September 2014, reviewing the docket items; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 22, 2014 on the land use

amendment at 1000 SE City Beach Street from High Density Residential to Public Facilities, 

recommending its approval; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 26, 2014 on the UGA 

Boundary corrections on the Future Land Use Map, recommending its approval; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the scenic view corridors on 

August 26, 2014, recommending its approval; and 

ATTACHMENT 4

164



Ordinance to amend Comp Plan 2014.doc 

Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, a SEPA Determination of Nonsignificance was issued for the 2014 Comprehensive 

Plan amendments on October 8, 2014 with a 14 day appeal period ending on October 24, 2014, 

which received no substantive comment; and  

WHEREAS, the 2014 Comprehensive Plan amendment review process beginning in March 2014 

and continuing through the adoption of this Ordinance involved early and continuous public 

involvement through public meetings and hearings, as required by the Growth Management Act 

and the City’s public participation plan; and 

WHEREAS, as required by RCW 36.70A.106, the City provided 60-days’ notice to the 

Department of Commerce on August 29, 2014 and received no substantive comments from the 

Department; and 

WHEREAS, changes in conditions have occurred in the community since adoption of the 

previous Comprehensive Plan making it desirable to amend the plan; and 

WHEREAS, after due and proper notice, public hearings were conducted by the Planning 

Commission on October 28, 2014 and City Council on November 5, 2014 covering all proposed 

changes in the update of the Comprehensive Plan;  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One. Section 18.10.010 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Section 1 of 

Ordinance 1647 in 2012 is amended to read as follows: 

The comprehensive plan, a copy of which is on file with the city clerk, and is available 

for inspection, is hereby adopted on November 5, 2014 as Oak Harbor's Comprehensive 

Plan, amending and revising the comprehensive plan as adopted under Ordinance No. 

1647. 

Section Two.  Section 18.10.011 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Section 2 

of Ordinance 1647 is hereby amended to read as follows:  

The Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Designation Map, a copy of 

which is on file with the city clerk, and is available for inspection, is hereby adopted on 

November 5, 2014 as Oak Harbor's Future Land Use Designation Map, amending and 

revising the Future Land Use Designation Map adopted under Ordinance No. 1647. 

Section Four.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 

or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Five.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force (5) five days following 

publication. 

ATTACHMENT 4

165



Ordinance to amend Comp Plan 2014.doc 

Page 3 of 3 

PASSED by the City Council this 5
th

 day of November, 2014.

(    )  APPROVED by its Mayor this _____ day of _______________, 2014. 

(    )  Vetoed 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Mayor 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

Published: 

ATTACHMENT 4

166



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1702:  2015 Property 
Tax Levy 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
An ordinance to increase the 2015 City of Oak Harbor property tax levy by 1%.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
This agenda bill presents the ordinance required to establish the property tax levy rate for the City of Oak 
Harbor for 2015.  Under and RCW 84.55.005(1) and RCW 84.55.005(2)(c), the City may increase the 
collection of property tax revenues by the lower of 1% or the rate of inflation as set by the Implicit Price 
Deflator (IPD) as published by the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA).  The IPD measurement to be 
utilized for 2015 is 1.591%.  Accordingly, the allowed levy adjustment for 2014 is 1%.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1702:  2015 Property 
Tax Levy 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
An ordinance to increase the 2015 City of Oak Harbor property tax levy by 1%.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
This agenda bill presents the ordinance required to establish the property tax levy rate for the City of Oak 
Harbor for 2015.  Under and RCW 84.55.005(1) and RCW 84.55.005(2)(c), the City may increase the 
collection of property tax revenues by the lower of 1% or the rate of inflation as set by the Implicit Price 
Deflator (IPD) as published by the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA).  The IPD measurement to be 
utilized for 2015 is 1.591%.  Accordingly, the allowed levy adjustment for 2014 is 1%.utilized for 2015 is 1.591%.  Accordingly, the allowed levy adjustment for 2014 is 1%.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds to be generated: $39,653.75 annually

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item was discussed at the October 22, 2014 City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Hold public hearing.
2. Adopt Ordinance No. 1702.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

utilized for 2015 is 1.591%.  Accordingly, the allowed levy adjustment for 2014 is 1%.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds to be generated: $39,653.75 annually

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item was discussed at the October 22, 2014 City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Hold public hearing.
2. Adopt Ordinance No. 1702.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

  9.

167



MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
RCW 84.55.010 provides that a taxing jurisdiction may levy taxes in an amount no more than the limit 
factor multiplied by the highest levy of the most recent three years plus additional amounts resulting from
new construction and improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, and any increase in the 
value of stateâ€•assessed utility property.   

RCW 84.55.005(1) defines “inflation” as the percentage change in the implicit price deflator for personal
consumption expenditures for the United States as published for the most recent 12â€•month period by
the Bureau of Economic Analysis of the federal Department of Commerce in September of the year 
before the taxes are payable; 

RCW 84.55.005(2)(c), provides the limit factor for the City of Oak Harbor, a taxing jurisdiction with a 
population of over 10,000, is the lesser of 101 percent or 100 percent plus inflation;  

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attached Document Draft Ordinance No. 1702

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
RCW 84.55.010 provides that a taxing jurisdiction may levy taxes in an amount no more than the limit 
factor multiplied by the highest levy of the most recent three years plus additional amounts resulting from 
new construction and improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, and any increase in the 
value of stateâ€•assessed utility property.   

RCW 84.55.005(1) defines “inflation” as the percentage change in the implicit price deflator for personal 
consumption expenditures for the United States as published for the most recent 12â€•month period by 
the Bureau of Economic Analysis of the federal Department of Commerce in September of the year 
before the taxes are payable; 

RCW 84.55.005(2)(c), provides the limit factor for the City of Oak Harbor, a taxing jurisdiction with a 
population of over 10,000, is the lesser of 101 percent or 100 percent plus inflation;  

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attached Document Draft Ordinance No. 1702

168



ORDINANCE  NO.1702 

AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE BY $39,653.75 THE AMOUNT TO BE RAISED BY AD VALOREM TAXES FOR 

THE 2015 PROPERTY TAX LEVY WHICH REPRESENTS A 1% INCREASE OVER THE ACTUAL LEVY 

ASSESSED IN 2014. 

WHEREAS, proper public notice of this ordinance and the related public hearing was given in the Whidbey News Times 

on October 29, 2014, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held November 5, 2014, to consider the City of Oak Harbor’s Current Expense budget 

for  the Year 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the population of the City of Oak Harbor is greater than 10,000; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor’s actual levy amount from the previous year was $3,965,374.58; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 84.55.005(1) defines “inflation” as the percentage change in the implicit price deflator for personal 

consumption expenditures for the United States as published for the most recent 12‐month period by the Bureau of 

Economic Analysis of the U.S. Department of Commerce in September of the year before the taxes are payable;  Inflation 

as evidenced by the change in the for the twelve month period ending June 2014 as measured by the change in the implicit 

price deflator (IPD) is 1.591% (percent); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor has met and considered its budget for the calendar year 2015, and 

after hearing and after duly considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, has determined that the City of Oak 

Harbor requires an increase in property tax revenue from the previous year, in order to discharge the expected expenses 

and obligations of the City of Oak Harbor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do hereby ordain as follows: 

Section One:  An increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby authorized for the levy to be collected in 2015 tax 

year.  The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy amount of the previous year shall be $39,653.75, which is an 

increase of one percent (1%) from the previous year.  This increase is exclusive of any additional revenues resulting from 

under-utilized levy capacity, from new construction, improvements to property, from newly constructed wind turbines, 

from any increase in the value of state-assessed property, from annexations that have occurred and refunds made.  The 

total regular property taxes will be budgeted at $4,150,000 for 2015.   

Section Two:  The City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this ordinance with the Island County Auditor. 

Section Three:  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is held 

invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not 

affected. 

Section Four:  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect five days after publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the City Council this 5th day of November, 2014. 

CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

169



 

       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

       

 

 

Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

 

 

________________________   _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

Introduction:  

Adopted:    

Published:  
 

 

 

170



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Discussion on Waste Water 
Treatment Plant Bonding 
options. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to reserve time for the Mayor, City Council, staff, and Susan 
Musselman, the City's financial advisor, to discuss the details of issuing revenue bonds for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant project.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The financing package for the treatment plant will include the issuance of revenue bonds backed by the 
rate capacity of the sewer utility system.  Ths discussion will provide the opportunity to illuminate the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Discussion on Waste Water 
Treatment Plant Bonding 
options. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to reserve time for the Mayor, City Council, staff, and Susan 
Musselman, the City's financial advisor, to discuss the details of issuing revenue bonds for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant project.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The financing package for the treatment plant will include the issuance of revenue bonds backed by the 
rate capacity of the sewer utility system.  Ths discussion will provide the opportunity to illuminate the rate capacity of the sewer utility system.  Ths discussion will provide the opportunity to illuminate the 
economic variables and issue options to be considered. 

Materials pertinent to the discussion will be provided at the November 5, 2014 meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
To be determined.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
City Council discussed funding options at its October City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No action required.  The results of this discussion could result in the presentation of a Resolution for bond 
financing at the next regular City Council meeting on November 18, 2014.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

rate capacity of the sewer utility system.  Ths discussion will provide the opportunity to illuminate the 
economic variables and issue options to be considered. 

Materials pertinent to the discussion will be provided at the November 5, 2014 meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
To be determined.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
City Council discussed funding options at its October City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No action required.  The results of this discussion could result in the presentation of a Resolution for bond 
financing at the next regular City Council meeting on November 18, 2014.

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

  10.

171



No report.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS

No report.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS

172



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Discussion and action on the 
2015-16 allocation of utility tax 
to the Art Acquisition and 
Maintenance Fund.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda item is for the City Council to discuss and decide, per Oak Harbor Municipal
Code section 3.71.060, what proportion of the utility tax collected shall be allocated to the Art
Acquisition & Maintenance Fund for the biennial budget period of 2015-2016.  This discussion and 
decision making process is required per OHMC 3.71.060.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 5, 2014

Subject: Discussion and action on the 
2015-16 allocation of utility tax 
to the Art Acquisition and 
Maintenance Fund.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda item is for the City Council to discuss and decide, per Oak Harbor Municipal 
Code section 3.71.060, what proportion of the utility tax collected shall be allocated to the Art 
Acquisition & Maintenance Fund for the biennial budget period of 2015-2016.  This discussion and 
decision making process is required per OHMC 3.71.060.

SUMMARY STATEMENTSUMMARY STATEMENT
In 2009, City Council passed Ordinance No. 1547 which in part established OHMC Section 3.71.060 
with the following language:

“3.71.060 Allocation of utility tax to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.

The city council shall decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what
proportion of the utility tax collected pursuant to this chapter shall be allocated to the art acquisition and 
maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).”

In order to comply with this code section, City Council needs to formally decide what proportion of the 
utility tax collected shall be allocated to the art acquisition and maintenance fund during the 2015-2016 
biennial budget period.  Currently, a .25% proportion of the utility tax collected for water, sewer, and 
solid wate service providers is directed to art acquisition and maintenance purposes under this section.  
This discussion does not address the remaining 6% utility tax charged to each utility.

Should the City Council decide that the proportion of utility tax remain at its current level, no action will 
be required.  Should City Council desire to amend OHMC 3.71.060 to change the proportion of utility 
tax allocated to the Art Acquisition and Maintenance Fund, staff will bring forward the appropriate 
ordinance at the November 18, 2014 regular City Council meeting.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In 2009, City Council passed Ordinance No. 1547 which in part established OHMC Section 3.71.060 
with the following language:

“3.71.060 Allocation of utility tax to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.

The city council shall decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what 
proportion of the utility tax collected pursuant to this chapter shall be allocated to the art acquisition and 
maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).”

In order to comply with this code section, City Council needs to formally decide what proportion of the 
utility tax collected shall be allocated to the art acquisition and maintenance fund during the 2015-2016 
biennial budget period.  Currently, a .25% proportion of the utility tax collected for water, sewer, and 
solid wate service providers is directed to art acquisition and maintenance purposes under this section.  
This discussion does not address the remaining 6% utility tax charged to each utility.

Should the City Council decide that the proportion of utility tax remain at its current level, no action will 
be required.  Should City Council desire to amend OHMC 3.71.060 to change the proportion of utility 
tax allocated to the Art Acquisition and Maintenance Fund, staff will bring forward the appropriate 
ordinance at the November 18, 2014 regular City Council meeting.

  11.

173

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor03/OakHarbor0326.html#3.26


FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Not applicable.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Not applicable.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item has not been discussed at a City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discuss and decide what proportion of the utility tax collected persuant to OHMC 3.71.060 shall be 
allocated to the Art Acquisition and Maintenance Fund. 

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
OHMC 3.71.060 Allocation of utility tax to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.
The city council shall decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what
proportion of the utility tax collected pursuant to this chapter shall be allocated to the art acquisition and 
maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Not applicable.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Not applicable.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item has not been discussed at a City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discuss and decide what proportion of the utility tax collected persuant to OHMC 3.71.060 shall be 
allocated to the Art Acquisition and Maintenance Fund. 

DISCUSSION

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT
No report.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

AUTHORITY
OHMC 3.71.060 Allocation of utility tax to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.
The city council shall decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what 
proportion of the utility tax collected pursuant to this chapter shall be allocated to the art acquisition and 
maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).

ATTACHMENTS

maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).

ATTACHMENTS

174

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor03/OakHarbor0326.html#3.26

	Agenda for November 5, 2014 Regular Council Meeting
	Proclamation in Recognition of Veteran's Day
	C/A 6.a Minutes of the Special Meeting, Regular Meeting held ctober 21, 2014, and Workshop held October 22, 2014.
	Special Meeting Minutes on October 21, 2014
	Regular Meeting Minutes on October 21, 2014
	Workshop Meeting Minutes on October 22, 2014
	Parliamentary Workshop Minutes on October 30, 2014

	C/A 6.b Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers.
	Voucher Listings No. 1
	Voucher Listings No. 2

	C/A 6.c Authorize the Mayor to sign the 2016 Water Quality Financial Assitance loan application.
	C/A 6.d Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment #1 to Forest City Agreement for Animal Control Services.
	Forest City Agreement Formula Table 
	Forest City Agreement Amendment #1
	Forest City Agreement September 2013

	C/A 6.e Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Washington State Department of Corrections Contract.
	Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement Amendment #1 (PREA) 
	Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement 
	Washington State Department of Corrections Inter-local Agreement Amendment #2 (Term and Billing Adjustment)

	C/A 6.f Ordinance 1706:  Ordinance Repealing OHMC 2.04 entitled 'Salary of Mayor and Councilmen'
	Ordinance No. 1706

	8.a Resolution 14-38: Supporting NASWI during EIS Scoping Period
	Draft Resolution 14-38

	9.a Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
	 TIP Code Key
	 Resolution 14-37
	 STIP Locations
	 TIP Report

	9.b Ordinance 1703: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments
	Planning Commission report and minutes from 7/22/14 - 1000 SE City Beach Street
	Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - UGA Boundary amendment/correction
	Planning Commission report and minutes from 8/26/14 - Scenic View Corridors
	Ordinance No. 1703

	9.c Ordinance 1702:  2015 Property Tax Levy 
	Ordinance No. 1702

	10.a Discussion on Waste Water Treatment Plant Bonding options.
	11.a Discussion and action on the 2015-2016 allocation of utility tax to the Art Acquisition and Maintenance Fund.




